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The Board of Water Supply, City and County of Honolulu, Regular Meeting will be held on Monday, 
February 26, 2024, at 2:00 p.m. in the Boardroom, Public Service Building, 630 South Beretania Street, 
Honolulu, HI 96843. 

Limited seating will be available for in-person testifiers in the Boardroom. The public may also view the 
livestream of the meeting from the lobby of the Board of Water Supply, Public Service Building, 630 S. 
Beretania St., Honolulu, HI 96843. 

TESTIMONY 

Testimony may be submitted as follows: 

• Written testimony should include the submitters address, email address, and phone number.
Testimony should be received by Monday, February 26, 2024, at noon. Submit written testimony
by:

o Email to board@hbws.org
o Online at boardofwatersupply.com/testimony
o Mail to Board of Water Supply, 630 S. Beretania St., Honolulu, HI 96843
o Fax to (808) 748-5079

• Oral testimony will be accepted remotely and in person during the meeting. Pre­
registration is encouraged to facilitate as much remote and in-person testimony as
reasonably possible during the time allotted. Testifiers should also consider submitting a
written version of their oral testimony.

o To testify remotely by phone or video using the Zoom videoconferencing
platform, please submit your request by:

■ Email to board@hbws.org
■ Online at boardofwatersupply.com/testimony

Zoom registration instructions, as well as participant guidelines, will be sent to 
the contact information provided. Once confirmed as registered, testifiers will 
receive an email containing the links and instructions to join the Zoom session. 
Submit your request to testify remotely by Friday, February 23, 2024, at noon. 

o To testify in person at the Board of Water Supply, Public Service Building, 630 S.
Beretania St., Honolulu, HI 96843, please pre-register by submitting your request by
Monday, February 26, 2024:

■ Email to board@hbws.org
■ Online at boardofwatersupply.com/testimony

In-person testifiers should check-in with building security and then with testimony staff 
located in the lobby. Testifiers will be escorted to and from the Board Room. On-site 
registration will be available for walk-in requests. 



Testimony is limited to two (2) minutes and shall be presented by the registered speaker only. Testimony 
submitted in writing or orally, electronically or in person, for use in the meeting process is public 
information. All testimony will be included as part of the approved meeting minutes at 
boardofwatersupply. com/board meetings. 

MATERIALS AVAILABLE FOR INSPECTION 

Meeting materials ("board packet" under HRS §92-7.5) are accessible at 
www.boardofwatersupply.com/boardmeetings. 

VIEWING THE MEETING 

The meeting will be viewable via live streaming on the BWS website: 
www.boardofwatersupply.com/live. Video will appear on screen. You may have to click the 
arrow on video to start it. You may have to unmute audio as muted audio tends to be the 
default setting. 

SPECIAL REQUESTS AND ACCOMMODATIONS 

If you require special assistance, an auxiliary aid or service, and/or an accommodation due to a 
disability to participate in this meeting (i.e., sign language interpreter, interpreter for language other 
than English, or wheelchair accessibility), please call Joy at (808) 748-5172 or email your request to 
board@hbws.org at least three business days prior to the meeting date. If a response is 
received after the requested three business days before the meeting date deadline, we will try to 
obtain the auxiliary aid/service or accommodation, but we cannot guarantee that the request will be 
filled. 

Upon request, this notice is available in alternate formats such as large print, Braille, or electronic 
copy. 



The agenda for the February 26, 2024, Regular Meeting of the Board of Water Supply is 
as follows: 

ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION 

1. Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting Held on January 22, 2024

2. Introduction of Resolution No. 979, 2024, Providing for Acquisition of Water
Pipeline Easement by Eminent Domain Over an Un-Named Private Roadway Off
Booth Road Situate at Pauoa Valley, Honolulu, O'ahu, Hawai'i Tax Map Key 2-2-
056:070

3. Introduction of Resolution No. 980, 2024, Providing for Acquisition of Drainage
and Flowage Easement By Eminent Domain Over a Portion of Land Situate at
Makau, Ko'olauloa, O'ahu, Hawai'i Tax Map Key 5-3-007:016

4. Adoption of Resolution No. 981, 2024, Authorizing Up to $85,000,000 Principal
Amount of Series 2024 Bonds

5. Adoption of Resolution No. 982, 2024, Amending Water System Revenue Bonds,
Bond Resolution No. 717, 2001

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 

1. Update on the Board of Water Supply's Response to the Potential Impacts of the
Red Hill Fuel Contamination

2. Financial Update for the Quarter Ended December 31, 2023

3. Capital Improvement Program Quarterly Update

4. Financial Statements and Supplementary Information with Independent Auditors'
Report, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

5. Status Update of Groundwater Levels at All Index Stations

6. Water Main Repair Report for January 2024



M!NUI.!;§ 

To watch the recording of this meeting, please click on the following link: 

https://vimeo.com/bwshonolulu/feb-26-2024. Closed captioning is available. 

THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE 
BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 

February 26, 2024 

At 2:00 PM on February 26, 2024, in the Public Service Building Board Room at 630 South 
Beretania Street, Honolulu, Hawaii, Board Chair Na'alehu Anthony called to order the Regular 
Meeting. 

February 26, 2024 

Present: 

Also Present: 

Na'alehu Anthony, Chair 
Kapua Sproat, Vice Chair via Zoom 
Bryan P. Andaya, Board Member via Zoom 
Jonathan Kaneshiro, Board Member 

Ernest Lau, Manager and Chief Engineer 
Erwin Kawata, Deputy Manager 
Jadine Urasaki, Acting Program Administrator, 

Capital Projects Division 
Jewel Pharms, Assistant Program Administrator, 

Customer Care Division 
Kathleen Elliott-Pahinui, Information Officer, 

Communications Office 
Raelynn Nakabayashi, Executive Assistant I, 

Executive Support Office 
Jason Nikaido, Program Administrator, 

Field Operations Division 
Kaliko Lum Kee, Acting Waterworks Controller, 

Finance Division 
Michele Thomas, Executive Assistant I, 

Human Resources Office 
via Vimeo 

Henderson Nuuhiwa, Program Administrator, 
Information Technology Division 

Michael Matsuo, Land Administrator, Land Division 
Roland Fenstemacher, 

Water Quality Laboratory Director, 
Water Quality Division 

Barry Usagawa, Program Administrator, 
Water Resources Division 

Kevin lhu, Program Administrator, 
Water System Operations Division 
via Vimeo 

Kathy Mitchell, Administrative Services Officer 
via Vimeo 

Kimberly Kuwaye, Manager Secretary 
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February 26, 2024 

Others Present: 

Absent: 

Joy Cruz-Achiu, Board Secretary 
Steven Norstrom, Information Specialist 11, 

Communications Office 
Stella Bernardo, Information Specialist 11, 

Communications Office via Zoom 
Michele Harman, Community Relations Specialist I, 

Communications Office via Zoom 
Wayne Maria, Information Specialist II, 

Communications Office 

Jeff Lau, Deputy Corporation Counsel 
via Zoom 

Moana Yost, Deputy Corporation Counsel 
via Zoom 

Rozelle Agag, Deputy Corporation Counsel 
via Zoom 

Donn Nakamura, Accuity LLP 
Matthew Oda, Accuity LLP 

Gene C. Albano, Ex-Officio 
Edwin H. Sniffen, Ex-Officio 
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Chair Na'alehu Anthony opened the Board meeting with an 'olelo no'eau: 

Aloha mai kakou e na hoa makamaka mai ka la hiki a ka la kau. Welina nui me ke 

aloha! Mahalo nui no keia 'akoakoa 'ana o kakou no ka pono o ka lahui, no ka pono o ka 'aina, 
a no ka pono o ka wai no ho'i. 0 keia ka Mahina 'Olelo Hawai'i no Laila eia ka olelo noe'au

no kela- i ka 'olelo ke ola, i ka 'olelo ka make. "In the language is life; in the language is death." 

'A'ohe loa'a i ka noho wale. 

Chair Anthony translated the 'olelo no'eau: Thank you all for coming together today for the 

people, the land, and the water. Here is a short Hawaiian Proverb that helps us remember the 

importance of fresh water. This is Hawaiian language so here is a proverb about language in 
honor of that, "in the language is life, in the language is death." 

Chair Anthony welcomed everyone to the February 26, 2024, Regular Meeting of the Board of 
Water Supply (BWS). He stated that the Board of Water Supply is dedicated to providing safe, 
dependable, and affordable supply of water now and into the future. 

Before continuing the meeting, Chair Anthony stated that a recording would play to share 
reminders for public participation and virtual meeting regulations required by law. 

The recording played: Goals for this meeting under Hawaii Revised Statutes, Section 92-7.5 
are accessible at www.boardofwatersupply.com/boardmeeting. The public may attend this 
meeting in person at the Public Service building located at 630 South Beretania Street. The 
public may also view a live stream of today's meeting on our website at 
www.boardofwatersupply.com/live. We have been accepting written or oral testimony for 
today's meeting. Instructions and an online submittal form are available at 
boardofwatersupply.com/testimony. The deadline to submit advance written testimony has 
passed. Testimony received by noon today has been distributed to the board members. We 
will continue to accept written testimony today through our online form. Oral testimony in 
person or remotely will be accepted during today's meeting. To facilitate as much in-person and 
remote testimony as reasonably possible during the time allotted, preregistration and submittal 
of a written version of testimony at boardofwatersupply.com/testimony is strongly encouraged. 
To testify in person, please register using our online form or come to the public service building 
at 630 South Beretania Street. We have a representative in the lobby to provide intake and 
further instructions. To request to testify remotely, please complete the online form at 
boardofwatersupply.com/testimony. Requestors will receive an email containing links and 
instructions to join the Zoom session. Testifiers will have two minutes to state their position. A 
timekeeper will alert testifiers when there is one minute remaining. Once the two minutes are 
up, please summarize to allow time for questions from the Board. Then make room for the next 
testifier. Board members attending any board meeting remotely must be visible to the public to 
be considered, present, and meet quorum guidelines. Board members participating remotely 
must also disclose their location and anyone present at their location during roll call. Meeting 
participants who are calling or video conferencing in, please mute your microphone when you're 
not speaking. If you have a question, comment, or wish to enter or second a motion on an 
action item, please unmute your microphone and identify yourself before continuing to speak. If 
you encounter technical issues during today's meeting, please use the Zoom chat to send a 
direct message to our support team. Their names are listed in the message to all participants. 
To open the chat window, please click the text Bubble icon on the Zoom Toolbar. 
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Chair Anthony requested a roll call for the Regular Meeting. He asked those participating 
remotely to give the appropriate disclosures up responding. 

Vice Chair Kapua Sproat joined via Zoom, responded aye, and disclosed that she was alone at 
her location; Board Member Bryan Andaya joined via Zoom, responded aye, and disclosed that 
he was alone at his location; and Board Member Jonathan Kaneshiro responded aye and was 
present in the Board room. Chair Anthony was present in the Boardroom. Board Members 
Edwin Sniffen and Gene Albano were absent. 

Chair Anthony introduced those in the Boardroom, Manager Ernest Lau, Deputy Manager Erwin 
Kawata, Board Secretary Joy L. Cruz-Achiu, Manager Secretary Kimberly Kuwaye, and 
Information Specialist II Steven Norstrom and Wayne Maria. Deputy Jeff Lau and Deputy 
Moana Yost joined via Zoom from the City and County Corporation Counsel. 
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REGULAR MEETING 

APPROVAL OF 
MINUTES 

MOTION 
TO APPROVE 

Approval of the Minutes of the Regular Meeting Held on January 22, 
2024. 

Jonathan Kaneshiro and Bryan Andaya motioned and seconded, 
respectively, to approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting Held on 
January 22, 2024. 

In lieu of a roll call vote, Chair Anthony requested a voice vote on the 
motion and requested that Board Members in favor of the motion say 
"Aye." The Board members present responded with a verbal "Aye." 
Chair Anthony then inquired if any Board Members would like to object or 
vote "Nay" on the motion. There were no objections or "Nay" votes. Vice 
Chair Anthony announced that the motion was unanimously carried. 

THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD ON 
JANUARY 22, 2024, WERE APPROVED AT THE 
FEBRUARY 26, 2024, BOARD MEETING 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

KAPUA SPROAT X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO ABSENT 
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"February 26, 2024 
INTRODUCTION OF Chair and Members 
RESOLUTION NO. Board of Water Supply 
979, 2024, City and County of Honolulu 
PROVIDING FOR Honolulu, Hawaii 96843 
ACQUISITION OF 
WATER PIPELINE Chair and Members: 
EASEMENT BY 
EMINENT DOMAIN Subject: Introduction of Resolution No. 979, 2024, Providing 
OVER AN 
UN-NAMED 
PRIVATE 
ROADWAY OFF 
BOOTH ROAD 
SITUATE AT 
PAUOA VALLEY, 
HONOLULU, 
O'AHU, HAWAl'I 
TAX MAP KEY 
2-2-056:070

DISCUSSION: 

February 26, 2024 

for Acquisition of Water Pipeline Easement by Eminent 
Domain Over an Un-Named Private Roadway Off Booth 
Road Situate at Pauoa Valley, Honolulu, O'ahu, Hawai'i 
Tax Map Key 2-2-056:070 

We recommend introduction of the attached Resolution No. 979, 2024, 
authorizing proceedings in eminent domain for the acquisition 
of an easement for water pipeline purposes in Pauoa Valley. 

The easement is over, under and across an existing Roadway Lot. 
Brittany K. Tilton, Thomas T. Shigeta and Karen P. Shigeta, Albert 
Y.Y. Yuen and Minnie M. Yuen, Brandon T. Hiroshige, Karyn K. Harada, 
and Frank Mew Duck Lum and Robert G. Weismantel and Joslyn Mew 
Linn Weismantel all have an undivided interest in the Roadway Lot. 

This resolution, upon publication and subsequent adoption, will enable 
the Corporation Counsel to initiate eminent domain proceedings on behalf 
of the Board. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Isl ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

Michael Matsuo, Land Administrator, Land Division, gave the report. 

Vice Chair Kapua Sproat inquired if, other than certified letters and 
visiting them personally, the BWS apprised the residents that it could be 
costly to them or that they may have to retain legal counsel to represent 
them if the BWS were to move forward with eminent domain. 

Mr. Michael Matsuo responded that the BWS did not inform the residents 
that the process involves court proceedings if the BWS moves forward 
with acquiring the unnamed roadway through eminent domain. He stated 
that the BWS will attempt another certified letter with a return receipt and 
hand-delivery to the residents, providing additional information. 
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February 26, 2024 

Manager Ernest Lau mentioned that the residents would have another 
opportunity to sign and avoid court proceedings with the next BWS 
attempt. 

Vice Chair Sproat also suggested having a notary available for door-to­
door service. 

Mr. Matsuo replied that he would look into having a mobile notary 
available. He stated that he has concerns since, in previous attempts, the 
BWS did not receive responses from everyone, and one resident refused 
to speak to the BWS. The BWS will reach out to the residents using the 
recommendations provided and remain hopeful that the remaining 
residents will sign the grant of easement. 

Vice Chair Sproat stated that she would vote in favor of the BWS moving 
forward but would appreciate it if the BWS staff would make one final 
effort to reach out to the residents. 

Board Member Bryan Andaya echoed Vice Chair Sproat's comments. He 
asked if the residents would be compensated. 

Mr. Matsuo explained that roadways usually have no value. Thus, the 
BWS is not offering any compensation to the residents other than the 
symbolic $1.00. 

Chair Na'alehu Anthony inquired what mechanism was used that allowed 
the BWS to construct the waterline in the road. 

Mr. Matsuo shared that typically, the BWS will acquire consent to entry 
from the owner(s) to perform due diligence and construction. Once 
construction is completed, the BWS would approach the owner(s) to grant 
the BWS an easement. 

Chair Anthony asked if the easement would allow the BWS to service the 
pipeline. 

Mr. Matsuo explained that since the road is private without the easement, 
the BWS would have no legal right to repair the pipeline or other 
equipment without an easement. 

Manager Lau shared that the BWS is using eminent domain as a last 
resort to improve and benefit the community. He also shared that a fire 
hydrant was installed with the pipeline. 

Chair Anthony inquired if the private, un-named roadway is part of a vast 
property owned by one family and divided over the years. 

Mr. Matsuo stated that the property was submitted under the 
condominium property regime. He explained that individual condominium 
units were built instead of subdividing the property, requiring a roadway to 
provide access. 
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MOTION 
TO APPROVE 

February 26, 2024 

Chair Anthony asked if there were circumstances where the BWS would 
bring water service up to the edge of the private road and tell the 
residents they would be responsible for the pipeline past the edge. He 
further asked if the installation of the fire hydrant triggered something 
more. 

Ms. Jadine Urasaki responded that the BWS is responsible for what is 
legally accessible. 

Mr. Matsuo stated that the water pipeline already exists on the private 
road, so the BWS has replaced it due to breaks despite not having an 
easement of the private road. 

Manager Lau added that the BWS was granted consent(s) of entry to 
perform the necessary work. 

Mr. Matsuo added that the residents signed the consent of entry, which 
indicated that the BWS needed an easement; therefore, the residents 
knew that the BWS would be working on the private road. 

Board Member Jonathan Kaneshiro inquired if the consent(s) of entry was 
accompanied by a grant of easement document, which indicated 
residents would need it to be notarized. 

Mr. Matsu responded no. 

Board Member Kaneshiro asked if the BWS is acquiring an easement or 
ownership of the private road fee. 

Mr. Matsuo replied that the BWS would be acquiring an easement over 
the private road, not ownership of the private road. 

Jonathan Kaneshiro and Kapua Sproat motioned and seconded, 
respectively, to approve for Introduction of Resolution No. 979, 2024, 

Providing for Acquistion of Water Pipeline Easement by Eminent Domain 

Over an Un-Named Prive Roadway Off Booth Road Situate at Pauoa 

Valley, Honolulu, Hawai'i Tax Map Key 2-2-056:070. 

Ms. Cruz-Achiu conducted a roll call vote: Vice Chair Kapua Sproat, aye; 
Board Member Bryan Andaya, aye; Board Member Jonathan Kaneshiro; 
aye; and Chair Na'alehu Anthony, aye. Board Members Edwin Sniffen 
and Gene Albano were absent. 

Ms. Cruz-Achiu announced that the motion passed with four ayes. 
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INTRODUCTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 979, 2024, 
PROVIDING ACQUISITION OF WATER PIPELINE 
EASEMENT BY EMINENT DOMAIN OVER AN UN-NAMED 
PRIVATE ROADWAY OFF BOOTH ROAD SITUATE PAUOA 
VALLEY, HONOLULU, O'AHU, HAWAl'I TAX MAP KEY 2-2-
056:070 WAS APPROVED ON FEBRUARY 26, 2024 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

KAPUA SPROAT X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO ABSENT 
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BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU 

RESOLUTION NO. 979, 2024 

PROVIDING FOR ACQUISITION OF 
WATER PIPELINE EASEMENT BY EMINENT DOMAIN 

OVER AN UN-NAMED PRIVATE ROADWAY 
OFF BOOTH ROAD SITUATE AT 

PAUOA VALLEY, HONOLULU, O'AHU, HAWAl'I 
TAX MAP KEY: 2-2-056:070 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Water Supply, City and County of Honolulu: 

I. 

That for public use and purposes, to wit, the installation, maintenance, operation, 

replacement and removal of an 8-inch waterline and appurtenances to replace an 

existing waterline that has experienced breaks and to improve water service and fire 

protection for the subject un-named road ("Roadway Lot"), more particularly described 

in Exhibit "A" and shown on Exhibit "B", both attached hereto and made a part hereof, 

and by this reference incorporated herein, proceedings in eminent domain as provided 

by the law be instituted for the acquisition of an easement for water pipeline purposes, 

over, under and across the entire width of the Roadway Lot, together with the right of 

ingress to and egress from the Roadway Lot, and that the Corporation Counsel of the 

City and County of Honolulu, be and is hereby authorized and empowered to institute 

said proceedings. 

The acquisition of the foregoing easement by eminent domain is necessary for 

the aforesaid public use and purposes. 



11. 

That in the process of said proceedings in eminent domain the said Corporation
Counsel be and is hereby authorized and empowered to negotiate terms of a settlement
subject to the approval of the Board of Water Supply and/or the Court before which
such proceedings are commenced.

INTRODUCED BY:

��
NA'ALEHU ;��H6NY j}
Chair

Date of Introduction: February 26, 2024
Honolulu, Hawai'i

INTRODUCTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 979, 2024, 
PROVIDING ACQUISTION OF WATER PIPELINE 
EASEMENT BY EMINENT DOMAIN OVER AN UN-NAMED 
PRIVATE ROADWAY OFF BOOTH ROAD SITUATE PAUOA 
VALLEY, HONOLULU, O'AHU, HAWAl'I TAX MAP KEY 2-2-
056:070 WAS APPROVED ON FEBRUARY 26, 2024 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

KAPUA SPROAT X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO ABSENT 



EXHIBIT"A" 

That certain Roadway Lot, being portions of Land Commission Award 7712, 

Royal Patent 4484, Apana 6, Part 4 to M. Kekuanao'a for V. Kamamalu, Land 

Commission Award 1671, Apana 1 to Moanalua and Land Commission Award 7775, 

Apana 2 to Kahuaina, situate at Pauoa Valley, Honolulu, O'ahu, Hawai'i, and more 

particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the Northwest corner of this parcel of land, the North corner of Lot 
46, Booth Tract Extension, File Plan 473 and on the Southeasterly side of Booth Road, 

the coordinates of said point of beginning referred to a City and County Street Survey 

Monument at the intersection of Pauoa Road and Kawaena Place being 158.76 feet 
North and 423.82 feet West and running by azimuths measured clockwise from true 

South: 

1. 241" 43" QQR 43.06 feet along the South.easterly side of 
Booth Road; 

Thence on a curve t.o the left 
with a radius of 20 .. 00 feet, 
the chord azimuth and distance 
Joeing: 

2. 1a· 19' 00" 27.57 feet� 

,. 334• JS' 00" 36 .. 06 feet along the remainder of L. c.

Award 7712 ., R. P.4484, Apana 6, 
Part 4 to M. .. :Kekuanaoa. for v ..

Kam.amalu and L .. c. Award 1671 ,-

Apana 1 to Moanalua. 

4. 342" 46' oo• 118.46 feet. along the remainder o"t= L- c.

Award 1671, Apana l to
Moanalua; 

Thence along the remainder of 
L .. c. Award 1671, llpana 1 to 
Moanalua on a curve to ·the -1ert 

with a radius ot 35 .. 00 fee.t .. 
the chord aa.imuth and distance 
being: 

5 .. 309" 55' 50 .. 37.96 feet:.; 

Thence along the remainder ot

L. c. Award 1671, Apana 1 to
Moanalua on. a curve to the
right. with a radius of 35.00
feet t 

the chord azi:muth and 
distance being: 



307" 06 1 35" 

7. 14 • 37' 45"

111
.. 

10 , :rn .. 

35.02 feet; 

42 .. 63 feet; 

60 .. 03 feet; 

Thence along the remainders of 
L. C. Aw.. 1671, Apana 1 to
Moanalua and L. c. Award 7775,
Apana 2 to Kahuaina on a curve
to the right with a radius of
35 .. oo feet, the chord azimuth
and di.stance being:

Thence along tbe remainder of 
L. c:. Award 7775, Apana 2 to
Kahuaina on a curve to the
right with a radius of 35. oo
feat. the chord azimuth and
distance being-1

9. 110· 13' OO" 35 .. 00 feet along LOts 39 and 40, BoOth 
Tract Extension, File Plan 473; 

10. 162" 46' 00" 141 .. 29 feet along Lots 40, 41 and 46, Booth 
Tract Extension, Pile Plan 4731 

11.. 154 • 35' OO" 52. Ui feet along Lot 46, Booth Tract 
Extenaion, File Plan 473 to the 
point of beginning and 
containing an area of 9

r
055 

square feet., 

END EXHIBIT "A" 



































"February 26, 2024 
INTRODUCTION OF Chair and Members 
RESOLUTION NO. Board of Water Supply 
980, 2024, City and County of Honolulu 
PROVIDING FOR Honolulu, Hawaii 96843 
ACQUISITION OF 
DRAINAGE AND 
FLOWAGE 

EASEMENT 
DOMAIN OVER A 
PORTION OF LAND 
SITUATE AT 
MAKAU, 
KO'OLAULOA 
O'AHU, HAWAl'I 
TAX MAP KEY 
5-3-007:016

DISCUSSION: 

February 26, 2024 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Introduction of Resolution No. 980, 2024, Providing 
for Acquisition of Drainage and Flowage Easement By 
Eminent Domain Over a Portion of Land Situate at Makau, 
Ko'olauloa, O'ahu, Hawai'i Tax Map Key 5-3-007:016 

We recommend introduction of the attached Resolution No. 980, 2024, 
authorizing proceedings in eminent domain for the acquisition of an 
easement for drainage and flowage purposes in Punalu'u. 

The easement is over, under and across a portion of the subject real 
property, which is jointly owned by Karen K. Lindsey, Tracy H. Keolanui 
and Debbi-Jaye L.G. Keolanui, and Meryl Mapuana Martin. 

This resolution, upon publication and subsequent adoption, will enable 
the Corporation Counsel to initiate eminent domain proceedings on behalf 
of the Board. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Isl ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

Michael Matsuo, Land Administrator, Land Division, gave the report. 

Board Member Andaya commented that since the BWS initially informed 
the landowners that the BWS may use "alternate means" to acquire the 
easement, he requested that the BWS communicate clearly to 
landowners that the BWS intends to acquire the easement through 
eminent domain. 

Vice Chair Sproat inquired if the landowners lived on the property. 

Mr. Matsuo stated that one lives in Texas, one on Hawai'i Island, and the 
other two on O'ahu but not on the property. 

Vice Chair Sproat suggested posting a notice or a copy of the letter on 
the landowner's property; in the event a tenant is living on the property, 
the tenant can convey the message to the landowner(s). She echoed 
Board Member Andaya's request that the BWS explain the process 
thoroughly. If the BWS does not receive a response from the 
landowners, the BWS will be forced to pursue eminent domain, which will 
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February 26, 2024 

mean instituting legal action. Vice Chair Sproat stated that posting a 
notice is recognized as an "action to notify" in a court of law. 

Manager Lau appreciated the suggestions and recommendations. He 
stated that the BWS takes eminent domain very seriously and does not 
like to exercise it; however, the BWS must be able to move forward with 
its projects. 

Vice Chair Sproat asked if the BWS had the landowner's current contact 
information or asked the tenants to forward the information. 

Mr. Matsuo shared that he has tried to contact one of the former 
landowners for updated contact information for the others and has 
searched the internet but has not been successful. He stated he would 
continue to try to obtain better contact information for the current 
landowners. 

Manager Lau stated that the BWS would try to contact the landowners 
again. 

Board Member Kaneshiro inquired if the BWS explored alternative 
roadway designs to avoid eminent domain. 

Ms. Urasaki replied that other design options were not looked into. 

Manager Lau commented that it could be costly for the BWS. 

Mr. Matsuo commented that to fit the new drainage and swale within the 
existing easement would require decreasing the width of the road; 
however, this is not recommended. 

Manager Lau stated that the road is currently 12 feet wide. 

Mr. Matsuo explained that the swale is currently two ft. within a four-foot 
shoulder area; therefore, adding this to the existing easement would 
result in decreasing the width of the road to eight feet. 

Manager Lau commented that a narrower road might make getting 
equipment to the well site difficult in the future. 

Chair Anthony inquired if the acquisition was to help with drainage and 
flowage during heavy rain. 

Mr. Matsuo said that Chair Anthony was correct. The gravel roadway 
degrades due to heavy rains, and the gravel and runoff travel down and 
onto Ko'olau Road. 

Vice Chair Sproat inquired if the owner(s) of the property on the opposite 
side of the existing road is different. If so, Vice Chair Sproat suggested 
that if this owner is receptive to the BWS acquiring the easement through 
their property, the BWS would not have to decrease the size of the road; 
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it would just move it over. Although, realized that it would require 
additional work and cost. 

Mr. Matsuo commented that he would try to identify the property owner on 
the opposite of the road. However, the cost to move the road would be 
more than $4,000, which the BWS would pay the landowners. 

Manager Lau stated that the BWS would aggressively attempt to reach 
out to the landowners before proceeding with eminent domain to avoid 
landowners having to go through a costly legal proceeding. 

For clarification, Mr. Matsuo stated that the appraised value of $4,183 
would be divided among the four landowners, two of whom are married. 

Jonathan Kaneshiro and Bryan Andaya motioned and seconded, 
respectively, to approve the Introduction of Resolution No. 980, 2024, 

Providing for Acquisition of Drainage and Flowage Easement By Eminent 

Domain Over a Portion of Land Situate at Mauk, Ko'olauloa, O'ahu, 

Hawai'i Tax Map Key 5-3-007:016. 

Ms. Cruz-Achiu conducted a roll call vote: Vice Chair Kapua Sproat, aye; 
Board Member Bryan Andaya, aye; Board Member Jonathan Kaneshiro; 
aye; and Chair Na'alehu Anthony, aye. Board Members Edwin Sniffen 
and Gene Albano were absent. 

Ms. Cruz-Achiu announced that the motion passed with four ayes. 

INTRODUCTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 980, 2024, 
PROVIDING FOR ACQUISITION OF DRAINAGE AND 
FLOWAGE EASEMENT BY EMINENT DOMAIN OVER A 
PORTION OF LAND SITUATE AT MAKUA, KO'OLAULOA, 
O'AHU, HAWAl'I TAX MAP KEY 5-3-007:016 WAS 
APPROVED ON FEBRUARY 26, 2024 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

KAPUA SPROAT X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO ABSENT 
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BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU 

RESOLUTION NO. 980. 2024 

PROVIDING FOR ACQUISITION OF 
DRAINAGE AND FLOWAGE EASEMENT 

BY EMINENT DOMAIN OVER A PORTION OF LAND 
SITUATE AT MAKAU, KO'OLAULOA, O'AHU, HAWAl'I 

TAX MAP KEY: 5-3-007:016 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Water Supply, City and County of Honolulu: 

I. 

That for public use and purposes, to wit, the installation, maintenance, operation, 

replacement and removal of a 2-foot wide V-shaped drainage ditch or swale to capture 

runoff from the Board of Water Supply Punalu'u Wells Ill site and access road and 

prevent gravel and other debris from flowing to the old 40-foot Railroad Right-of-Way 

known as Ko'olau Road during heavy rains, proceedings in eminent domain as provided 

by the law be instituted for the acquisition of Easement F-1 as described in Exhibit "A" 

attached hereto and made a part hereof, and by this reference incorporated herein, for 

drainage and flowage purposes from the Board of Water Supply Punalu'u Wells 111 site 

and access road, shown as Water System Facilities Site and Easement 6 on Exhibit "B," 

respectively, attached hereto and made a part hereof, and by this reference 

incorporated herein, over, under and across Easement F-1, over a portion of Land 

Commission Award 8164-E, Apana 1 to Kamali'i, including the right of ingress to and 

egress from Easement F-1 over Easement 6, and that the Corporation Counsel of the 

City and County of Honolulu, be and is hereby authorized and empowered to institute 

said proceedings. 

The acquisition of the foregoing easement by eminent domain is necessary for 

the aforesaid public use and purposes. 



11. 

That in the process of said proceedings in eminent domain, said Corporation 

Counsel be and is hereby authorized and empowered to negotiate terms of a settlement 

subject to the approval of the Board of Water Supply and/or the Court before which 

such proceedings are commenced. 

INTRODUCED BY: 

�$:11) 
NA'ALEHU ANTHONY 
Chair 

Date of Introduction: February 26, 2024 
Honolulu, Hawai'i 

INTRODUCTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 980, 2024, 
PROVIDING FOR ACQUISITION OF DRAINAGE AND 
FLOWAGE EASEMENT BY EMINENT DOMAIN OVER A 
PORTION OF LANO SITUATE AT MAKUA, KO'OLAULOA, 
O'AHU, HAWAl'I TAX MAP KEY 5-3-007:016 WAS 
APPROVED ON FEBRUARY 26, 2024 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

KAPUA SPROAT X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO ABSENT 



EXHIBIT"A" 

All of the certain parcel of land situate at Makau, Ko'olauloa, O'ahu, Hawai'i, being 

Easement F-1, for drainage and flowage purposes, area of 1,281 square feet, more or 

less and affecting Land Commission Award 8164-E, Apana 1 to Kamali'i, and more 

particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at the Northeast corner of this parcel of land, being also the end of 

Course 2 of Easement 6, the coordinates of said point of beginning referred to 

Government Survey Triangulati on Station "KAHANA" being 5,497.07 feet North and 

9,123.34 feet West, and running by azimuths measured clockwise from true South: 

1. 282° 00' 6.16 feet along the remainder of Land 
Commission Award 8164-E, 
Apana 1 to Kamali'i; 

2. 61° 30' 322.47 feet along same; 

3. 151° 30' 4.00 feet along same; 

4. 241° 30' 317.78 feet along same to the point of 
beginning and containing an area 
of 1,281 quare feet. 





































ADOPTION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 
981, 2024, 
AUTHORIZING UP 
TO $85,000,000 
PRINCIPAL 
AMOUNT OF 

SERIES 2024 

BONDS 

DISCUSSION: 

February 26, 2024 

"February 26, 2024 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 981, 2024, Authorizing Up to 

$85,000,000 Principal Amount of Series 2024 Bonds 

We recommend the adoption and approval of Resolution No. 981, 2024, 

which authorizes and approves the issuance by the Board of Water 
Supply (Board) at one time, of not to exceed $85,000,000 principal 
amount of revenue bonds. The purposes for which the Series 2024 

Bonds are being issued are: (1) to pay the cost of improvements 

authorized in the capital budget of the Board; (2) to pay the cost of 

issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds; and (3) to fund a trust fund to provide 
for the refunding and redemption of all or a portion of the Board's Water 

System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A, the Board's Water System 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B and/or the Board's Water System 
Revenue Bonds, Series 2020B. The bonds shall be on terms and 

conditions as the Board determined to be necessary and advisable. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully Submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

Kaliko Lum Kee, Acting Waterworks Controller, Finance Division, gave 
the report. 

Chair Anthony asked how the $85 million (M) would be divided and used. 

Mr. Kaliko Lum Kee replied that the $85M is not to exceed or up to the 
amount. He shared that the new money is $49M par value, and $24.6M 
is refunding the 2014A and 2014B Series Bond, a total of $73.6M. 
Resolution No. 981, 2024, Series 2024 Bonds, would allow up to $85M 
with a cushion. Mr. Lum Kee mentioned that the Series 2024 Bonds 
would be a cost savings for BWS customers, with savings from the BWS 
debt service. 

Chair Anthony inquired about the current interest rates. 

Mr. Lum Kee shared that the latest total true interest cost (TIC) is 4.19%. 
The cash flow savings from refunding is approximately $1 M. 
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BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 
CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU, HAW All 

WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BOND 

SERIES 2024 RESOLUTION NO. 981, 2024 

AUTHORIZING UP TO 

$85,000,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 
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WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BOND 
SERIES 2024 RESOLUTION NO. 981, 2024 

WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BOND 
SERIES 2024 RESOLUTION 

AUTHORIZING UP TO 

$85,000,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Water Supply of the City and County of Honolulu, 
Hawaii, as follows: 

ARTICLE I 

DEFINITIONS AND STATUTORY AUTHORITY 

Section 1.01. Series 202./ Resolution. (1) This Water System Revenue Bond 
Series 2024 Resolution, authorizing up to $85,000,000 principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds, is 
supplemental to, and constitutes a Series Resolution within the meaning of and is adopted in 
accordance with Article X of, the Resolution, as hereinafter defined. 

(2) It is hereby found and determined that it is necessary and required that the Board
authorize and issue at this time a Series of Bonds to be designated as herein provided to provide 
monies to carry out one or more purposes of the Board. 

Section 1.02. Definitions. (1) All terms which are defined in Section 1.01 of the 
Resolution shall have the same meanings, respectively, in this Series Resolution as such terms 
are given in said Section 1.01 of the Resolution. 

(2) In addition, as used in this Series Resolution, unless the context shall otherwise
require, the following terms shall have the following respective meanings: 

"Authorized Officer" means the Manager, the Waterworks Controller, the Assistant 
Waterworks Controller or other officer designated by resolution of the Board. 

"Resolution" means that certain resolution adopted by the Board on April 26, 2001, 
entitled "A Resolution Authorizing and Providing for the Issuance of Revenue Bonds of the 
Board of Water Supply of the City and County of Honolulu, Hawaii, for the Purposes of the 
Water System of Said City and County; Covenanting as to the Establishment, Maintenance, 
Revision and Collection of Charges and Rates for the Use and Services of Said Water System 
and the Collection and Disbursement of the Revenues Derived Therefrom; Pledging the Net 
Revenues Derived from Said Water System to the Payment of the Principal of and Interest on 
Said Bonds as the Same Fall Due; Creating and Establishing Certain Funds and Accounts; 
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WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BOND 

SERIES 2024 RESOLUTION NO. 981, 2024 

Setting Forth the Limitations or Conditions Upon the Issuance by the Board of Additional Bonds 
Payable from the Aforesaid Revenues; and Making Other Covenants and Agreements in 
Connection with the Foregoing," as amended and supplemented. 

"Series 2024 Bonds" means the Bonds authorized by Article II of this Series 2024 
Resolution. 

"Series 2024 Resolution" means this Water System Revenue Bond Series 2024 
Resolution authorizing up to $85,000,000 principal amount of the Series 2024 Bonds. 

"Taxable Bonds" means any Series 2024 Bonds which are not intended by the Board to 
be Tax-exempt Bonds. 

"Tax Certificate" means the Tax Certificate executed by an Authorized Officer of the 
Board in connection with the issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds that are Tax-exempt Bonds. 

(3) Words of any gender shall be deemed and construed to include correlative words
of the other genders. Unless the context shall otherwise indicate, words importing the singular 
number shall include the plural number and vice versa, and words importing persons shall 
include firms, associations and corporations, including public bodies, as well as natural persons. 

( 4) The terms "hereby," "hereof," "hereto," "herein," "hereunder," and any similar
terms, as used in this Series 2024 Resolution, refer to the Series 2024 Resolution. 

Section 1.03. Authority for the Series 2024 Resolution. This Series 2024 
Resolution is adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Act and the Resolution. 

ARTICLE II 

AUTHORIZATION, TERMS AND ISSUANCE 
OF SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 2.01. Authorization of Series 2024 Bonds, Principal Amount, 
Designation and Series. One or more Series of Bonds entitled to the benefit, protection and 
security of the Resolution are hereby authorized to be issued in an aggregate principal amount 
not to exceed $85,000,000. Each such Series of Bonds shall be designated as and shall be 
distinguished from the Bonds of all other Series by the title "Water System Revenue Bonds, 
Series __ ," (having inserted in such blank the year of issuance and any appropriate letter 
designation), pursuant to and subject to the terms, conditions and limitations established in the 
Resolution and this Series 2024 Resolution. 

Section 2.02. Purposes. The purposes for which the Series 2024 Bonds are 
being issued are (1) to pay the Costs of Improvements authorized in the capital budget of the 
Board; (2) to pay the costs of issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds; and (3) to fund a trust fund to 
provide for the refunding and redemption of all or a portion of the Board's Water System 
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WA1ER SYSTEM REVENUE BOND 
SERIES 2024 RESOLUTION NO. 981, 2024 

Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A, the Board's Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B and/or 
the Board's Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2020B (the "Outstanding Bonds"). 

Section 2.03. Delegation of Authority. (1) There is hereby delegated to any 
Authorized Officer of the Board, subject to the limitations contained herein and in the Resolution 
and the Act, the power with respect to the Series 2024 Bonds to determine and carry out the 
following: 

(a) The sale of the Series 2024 Bonds at public or private sale and, if at
private sale, the underwriter or underwriters; provided, however, that in the case of a 
private sale the purchase price paid by the purchasers thereof shall not be less than ninety 
percent (90%) of the principal amount of the Series 2024 Bonds so sold; 

(b) The principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds to be issued; provided,
however, that the principal amount of Series 2024 Bonds shall not exceed $85,000,000; 

( c) The specific Improvements to be financed from the proceeds of the Series
2024 Bonds; 

( d) The Series designation of each Series of the Series 2024 Bonds, the date or
dates, maturity date or dates and principal amount of each maturity of the Series 2024 
Bonds or the method for calculating such dates and amounts, the amount and date of each 
Sinking Fund Installment, if any, or the method for calculating the Sinking Fund 
Installments and which Series 2024 Bonds are Serial Bonds or Term Bonds, if any, and 
the Record Date or Record Dates of the Series 2024 Bonds for which the Record Date or 
Record Dates is other than the fifteenth (15th) day (whether or not a Business Day) of the 
month next preceding an interest payment date for such Bonds; 

( e) The interest rate or rates, if any, of the Series 2024 Bonds or the manner of
determining such rate or rates, the date from which interest on the Series 2024 Bonds 
shall accrue, the dates on which interest on the Series 2024 Bonds shall be payable, if 
any, and if any Series 2024 Bonds are Variable Rate Bonds, the Maximum Interest Rate 
and the Minimum Interest Rate for such Bonds, and the provisions, if any, as to the 
calculation or change of variable interest rates; provided, however, that the true interest 
cost (as determined by an Authorized Officer of the Board, which determination shall be 
conclusive) on the Series 2024 Bonds shall not exceed eight percent (8%) per annum in 
the case of Tax-exempt Bonds or ten percent (10%) per annum in the case of Taxable 

Bonds; 

(f) The Series 2024 Bonds which are Capital Appreciation Bonds, if any, the
Valuation Dates for such Bonds and the Accreted Value on each such Valuation Date; 

(g) The Series 2024 Bonds which are Deferred Income Bonds, if any, the
Valuation Dates for such Bonds, the Appreciated Value on each such Valuation Date and 
the Interest Commencement Date for such Bonds; 
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WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BOND 

SERIES 2024 RESOLUTION NO. 981, 2024 

(h) If any Series 2024 Bonds are Capital Appreciation Bonds or Deferred
Income Bonds, the manner in which and the period during which principal and interest 
shall be deemed to accrue on such Series 2024 Bonds; 

(i) If any Series 2024 Bonds are Option Bonds, (I) provisions regarding
tender for purchase or redemption thereof and payment of the purchase or Redemption 
Price thereof; and (2) provisions regarding the appointment of a Remarketing Agent; 

(j) The denomination or denominations of and the manner of numbering the 
Series 2024 Bonds; 

(k) The Series 2024 Bonds which are Book Entry Bonds, if any, and the
Depository therefor; 

(I) The Paying Agent or Paying Agents for the Series 2024 Bonds and the
place or places of payment of the principal, Sinking Fund Installments, if any, or 
Redemption Price of and interest on the Series 2024 Bonds; 

(m) The Redemption Price or Redemption Prices, if any, and, subject to
Article V of the Resolution, the redemption terms, if any, for the Series 2024 Bonds; 
provided, however, that the Redemption Price of Series 2024 Bonds at the election or 
direction of the Board shall not be greater than one hundred three percent (103%) of the 
principal amount of the Series 2024 Bonds to be redeemed, plus accrued interest thereon 
to the date of redemption; provided that the Redemption Price for any redemption of 
Taxable Bonds may be such higher price as may be appropriate for the sale of such 
Taxable Bonds; 

(n) The form of the Series 2024 Bonds and the form of the Paying Agent's
certificate of authentication thereon; 

( o) Whether the Series 2024 Bonds shall be entitled to the benefit of the
Common Reserve Account, and if so entitled, the amount of the Common Reserve 
Account Requirement and the method of funding or providing for such Common Reserve 
Account Requirement, the terms and provisions and credit quality of any Support Facility 
to be deposited therein, and any provisions with respect to subaccounts therein, if 
applicable; 

(p) Any prov1s1ons with respect to funds and accounts and subaccounts
therein, if applicable, and the Revenues and application thereof, as provided in Article VI 
of the Resolution; 

( q) If the Series 2024 Bonds shall not be entitled to the benefit of the
Common Reserve Account, whether a Series Reserve Account will be established for any 
of the Series 2024 Bonds, and if so determined to be established, the amount of the Series 
Reserve Account Requirement and the method of funding or providing for such Series 
Reserve Account Requirement, the terms and provisions and credit quality of any 
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WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BOND 

SERIES 2024 RESOLUTION NO. 981, 2024 

Support Facility to be deposited therein, and any provisions with respect to subaccounts 
therein, if applicable; 

(r) Which Outstanding Bonds shall be refunded from proceeds of the Series
2024 Bonds and other available moneys, and directions for the application of the 
proceeds of the Series 2024 Bonds, including directions with respect to the refunding of 
such Outstanding Bonds; 

(s) Whether a Support Facility shall be obtained or an Interest Rate Exchange
Agreement shall be entered into with respect to the Series 2024 Bonds, and if any Series 
2024 Bonds are Option Bonds, (i) the appointment of a Support Facility Provider which 
shall supply a Support Facility with respect to such Series 2024 Bonds; and (ii) 
provisions for the establishment of separate accounts in which amounts drawn under a 

Support Facility for the Series 2024 Bonds are to be deposited; 

(t) Directions for the application of the proceeds of the Series 2024 Bonds,
including the interest on any Series 2024 Bonds to be capitalized from the proceeds 
thereof, if any, and the date or dates to which such capitalized interest shall accrue; 

(u) [reserved];

(v) Which Series 2024 Bonds are to be issued as Tax-exempt Bonds and
which, if any, are to be issued as Taxable Bonds; and 

(w) Any other provisions deemed advisable by an Authorized Officer of the
Board, not in conflict with the provisions hereof or of the Resolution. 

(2) Such Authorized Officer shall execute one or more Series Certificates evidencing
determinations or other actions taken pursuant to the authority granted herein or in the 
Resolution and any such Series Certificate shall be conclusive evidence of the action or 
determination of such Authorized Officer as to the matters stated therein. 

(3) All Series 2024 Bonds of like Series, maturity and tenor issued pursuant to this
Series 2024 Resolution shall be identical in all respects, except as to denominations and 
numbers. 

Section 2.04. Authority to Enter into Agreements. (1) In the event any of the 

Series 2024 Bonds are sold at private sale as provided in clause (a) of subsection (1) of Section 

2.03, any Authorized Officer of the Board is hereby authorized to execute one or more. Bond 

Purchase Contracts in the name and on behalf of the Board in substantially the form as presented 

to and on file with the Board, which form is hereby approved, with such changes, insertions and

omissions as may be approved by such Authorized Officer, such execution being conclusive

evidence of such approval. 

(2) The form of the Continuing Disclosure Certificate, as presented to and on file
with the Board, is hereby approved. Any Authorized Officer of the Board is hereby authorized 
to execute one or more Continuing Disclosure Certificates substantially in such fonn, with such 
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changes, insertions and om1ss1ons as may be approved by such Authorized Officer, such 
execution being conclusive evidence of such approval. 

(3) The form of the Escrow Agreement by and between the Board and a financial
institution as trustee thereunder, as presented to and on file with the Board, is hereby approved. 
Any Authorized Officer of the Board is hereby authorized to select a qualified financial 
institution to serve as trustee and to execute the Escrow Agreement in the name and on behalf of 
the Board substantially in such form, with such changes, insertions and omissions as may be 
approved by such Authorized Officer, such execution being conclusive evidence of such 
approval. 

Section 2.05. Official Statements. (1) The form of Preliminary Official 
Statement, as presented to and on file with the Board, is hereby approved. The distribution in 
connection with the offering and sale of the Series 2024 Bonds of one or more Preliminary 
Official Statements in such form, with such changes, insertions and omissions as an Authorized 
Officer of the Board deems advisable, is hereby authorized. 

(2) Any Authorized Officer of the Board is hereby authorized to execute and deliver,
in the name and on behalf of the Board, one or more final Official Statements in substantially the 
form of the Preliminary Official Statement, with such changes, insertions and omissions as such 
Authorized Officer deems advisable, and to permit the distribution of said Official Statement or 
Official Statements in connection with the offering and sale of the Series 2024 Bonds. 

Section 2.06. Execution of Documents. Any Authorized Officer of the Board is 
hereby authorized to execute and deliver, in the name and on behalf of the Board, any and all 
documents and instruments, and to do and cause to be done any and all acts and things, said 
Authorized Officer deems necessary or advisable in connection with the offering, sale and 
issuance of the Series 2024 Bonds and to carry out the transactions contemplated by this Series 
2024 Resolution. 

ARTICLE III 

EXECUTION AND AUTHENTICATION OF 
THE SERIES 2024 BONDS 

Section 3.01. Execution and Authentication of Series 2024 Bonds. (1) Pursuant 
to the provisions of Sections 4.02 and 4.03 of the Resolution, the Chair or Vice-Chair of the 
Board is hereby authorized and directed to execute by his or her manual or facsimile signature 
the Series 2024 Bonds in the name of the Board; the program administrator, Finance Division, as 
the Waterworks Controller, is hereby authorized and directed to countersign by his or her manual 
or facsimile signature the Series 2024 Bonds, and the seal of the Board shall be affixed or a 
facsimile of such seal shall be imprinted on the Series 2024 Bonds. 

(2) If a Paying Agent for the Series 2024 Bonds is appointed as provided in clause (l)

of subsection (1) of Section 2.03, such Paying Agent is hereby authorized to authenticate by 
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manual signature the Series 2024 Bonds, and deliver the same to or upon the order of the Board, 
in such amounts and at such times as such Paying Agent shall be directed in writing by an 
Authorized Officer. 

ARTICLE IV 

APPLICATION OF PROCEEDS 

Section 4.01. Application of Proceeds and Deposit of Moneys. On the date of 
delivery of the Series 2024 Bonds, the proceeds of the sale of the Series 2024 Bonds shall be 
applied in accordance with the written direction of any Authorized Officer given pursuant to 
Section 2.03(l)(r) of this Series 2024 Resolution. 

ARTICLEV 

SPECIAL COVENANTS 

Section 5.01. Tax Status. The interest on the Series 2024 Bonds that are Tax­
exempt Bonds is intended to be excluded from gross income for purposes of federal income 
taxation. In order to maintain such exclusion, the Board affirms that the tax covenants made in 
Section 8.13 of the Resolution shall apply to the Series 2024 Bonds that are Tax-exempt Bonds. 
In furtherance of the foregoing, the Board shall comply with the provisions of the Tax Certificate 
executed by any Authorized Officer of the Board in connection with the applicable Series 2024 
Bonds that are Tax-exempt Bonds. 

Section 5.02. Survival of Covenant. The obligation of the Board to comply with 
the provisions of the Tax Certificate with respect to any required payments to the Department of 
the Treasury of the United States of America shall remain in full force and effect so long as the 
Board shall be required by the Code to make such payments, notwithstanding that the Series 
2024 Bonds that are Tax-Exempt Bonds are no longer Outstanding. 

ARTICLE VI 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Section 6.01. Effectiveness. The Series 2024 Resolution shall become effective 
immediately upon its adoption: 
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WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BOND 

SERIES 2024 RESOLUTION NO. 981, 2024 

INTRODUCED BY:
A/-o/fi� 
NA'ALEHU ANTHONY, Mr
Date oflntroduction: February 26, 2024 

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 981, 2024, 
AUTHORIZING UP TO $85,000,000 PRINCIPAL AMOUNT 
OF SERIES 2024 BONDS WAS ADOPTED ON 
FEBRUARY 26, 2024 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

KAPUA SPROAT X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO ABSENT 

The above and foregoing resolution is hereby 
approved as to form and legality this 
February 26, 2024. 

'/U)(l,NJ� Deputy Corporation Counsel 
City and County of Honolulu 

Moana A. Yost
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ADOPTION OF 
RESOLUTION NO. 
982, 2024, 
AMENDING 
WATER SYSTEM 
REVENUE BONDS, 
BOND 

RESOLUTION 
NO. 717, 2001 

DISCUSSION: 

February 26, 2024 

"February 26, 2024 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Adoption of Resolution No. 982, 2024, Amending Water 

System Revenue Bonds, Bond Resolution No. 717, 2001 

We recommend adoption of Resolution No. 982, 2024 amending Water 
System Revenue Bonds, Bond Resolution No. 717, 2021 adopted on 
April 26, 2001, which authorizes and provides for the issuance of revenue 
bonds of the Board of Water Supply. Resolution No. 717 set forth 
covenants for the establishment, maintenance, revision and collection of 
charges and rates and the collection and disbursement of revenues; 
created and established certain funds and accounts; and set forth the 
limitations or conditions upon the issuance of additional bonds. 

It is necessary and desirable that Section 1.01 of the Resolution be 
amended to: (a) provide for certain flexibility in terms of the treatment of 
certain revenues received and (b) provide certain flexibility in the choice 
of rating agencies and their thresholds for investments. The resolution 
amendments include changing the definition of Revenues to include the 
proceeds from legal settlements, and adding Kroll to the definition of 
Rating Agencies. The amendments will become effective upon the 
Board's receipt of consent of the Holders of not less than a majority of the 
Bonds then Outstanding. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Isl ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

Kaliko Lum Kee, Acting Waterworks Controller, Finance Division, gave 
the report. 

Chair Anthony asked if the BWS changed the definition of revenues to 
include proceeds from legal settlement and adding "Kroll" as one of the 
rating agencies. 

Mr. Lum Kee responded that the intent is not to deviate from the BWS's 
current rating agencies but for more flexibility. 

Manager Lau commented that the additional language acknowledges that 
future revenues may come from legal settlements for bondholders. 
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MOTION 
TO APPROVE 

Jonathan Kaneshiro and Bryan Andaya motioned and seconded, 
respectively, to approve the Adoption of Resolution No. 982, 2024, 

Amending Water System Revenue Bonds Resolution No. 717, 2001. 

Ms. Cruz-Achiu conducted a roll call vote: Vice Chair Kapua Sproat, aye; 
Board Member Bryan Andaya, aye; Board Member Jonathan Kaneshiro; 
aye; and Chair Na'alehu Anthony, aye. Board Members Edwin Sniffen 
and Gene Albano were absent. 

Ms. Cruz-Achiu announced that the motion passed with four ayes. 

ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 982, 2024, AMENDING 
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS RESOLUTION NO. 
717, 2024 WAS ADOPTED ON FEBRUARY 26, 2024 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

KAPUA SPROAT X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO ABSENT 
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BOARD OF WATER SUPPLY 

CITY AND COUNTY OF HONOLULU, HAW All 

RESOLUTION NO. 982, 2024 AMENDING 

BOND RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001 

AMENDMENT TO WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS 

BOND RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001 

ADOPTED FEBRUARY 26, 2024 



RESOLUTION NO. 982, 2024 AMENDING 

BOND RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001 

AMENDMENT TO WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS 
BOND RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001 

BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Water Supply of the City and County of Honolulu, 

Hawaii (the "Board"), as follows: 
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RESOLUTION NO. 982, 2024 AMENDING 

BOND RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001 

ARTICLE I 

RESOLUTION AMENDING WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS BOND 

RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001; FINDINGS AND DETERMINATIONS; AND 

DEFINITIONS 

Section 1.01. Anumdme11t to tl1e Water System Revenue Bond Resot11tiom Fil1dil1gs

a11d Determi11atio11s. (1) This resolution amends Resolution No. 717, 2001 duly adopted by the 
Board on April 26, 2001, as previously amended by Resolution No. 768, 2006 adopted by the 
Board on May 15, 2006, Resolution No. 819, 2012 adopted by the Board on February 27, 2012, 
and Resolution No. 909, 2020 adopted by the Board on February 24, 2020 (the "Resolution"). 

(2) It is hereby found and determined by the Board as follows: (i) that it is necessary
and desirable that Section 1.01 of the Resolution be amended to: (A) provide for certain 
flexibility in terms of the treatment of certain revenues received, and (B) provide certain 
flexibility in the choice of rating agencies and their thresholds for investments; (ii) the 
amendments will become effective upon the Board's receipt of consent of the Holders of not less 
than a majority of the Bonds then Outstanding; and (iii) the amendments provided herein are 
necessary and desirable and are in the best interests of the Board and the users of the Water 
System. 

Section 1.02. Defi11itio11s. (1) Ali terms which are defined in Section 1.01 of 
the Resolution shall have the same meanings, respectively, in this Resolution as such terms are 
given in said Section 1.01 of the Resolution, as except as otherwise provided herein. 

ARTICLE II 

AMENDMENT TO THE RESOLUTION 

Section 2.01. Ame11dme11t o[Sectio111.01.

(a) The following definitions in Section 1.01 of the Resolution are hereby
amended to read in its entirety as follows: 

"Revenues" means the moneys collected, including any moneys collected from 
the City and County or any department thereof, except the Board, derived by the Board 
from the rates, rentals, fees and charges prescribed for the use and services of, and the 
facilities and commodities furnished by, the Water System, including, without limiting 
the generality of the foregoing, (i) all income, receipts, profits, and other moneys derived 
from the sale of water and from the furnishing or supplying of the services, facilities and 
commodities through the Water System; (ii) all income from investments of moneys held 
under the Resolution including investment income on the Improvement Fund but not 
including any earnings on the Rebate Account, the Subordinate Obligation Fund and the 
Reimbursable Obligation Fund; (iii) all payments made by Counterparties pursuant to 
Interest Rate Exchange Agreements; aaa-(iv) moneys and Investment Securities 
transferred from the Rate Stabilization Account to the Operating Fund within 90 days 
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RESOLUTION NO. 982, 2024 AMENDING 

BOND RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001 

following the end of a Fiscal Year; and (v) all income derived from the proceeds of 

legal settlements. "Revenues" shall not include, (i) deposits subject to refund until such 
deposits have become the property of the Board; (ii) contributions in-aid-of construction 
and assessment, impact and other similar fees imposed and collected by the Board which 
are targeted to pay the Costs of specific Improvements; (iii) income, fees, charges, 
receipts, profits or other moneys derived by the Board from its ownership or operation of 
any separate utility system; or (iv) any gifts, grants, donations or other moneys received 
by the Board from any state or federal agency or other person if such gifts, grants, 
donations or other moneys are the subject of any limitation or reservation: (a) imposed 
by the donor or grantor; (b) imposed by law or administrative regulation to which the 
donor or grantor is subject, limiting the application of such funds; (v) amounts retained in 
the Operating Fund for working capital and operating reserves pursuant to the Resolution; 
or (vi) moneys and Investment Securities transferred from the Operating Fund to the Rate 
Stabilization Account within 90 days following the end of a Fiscal Year. 

"Investment Securities" means any of the following, if and to the extent that the 
same are legal for the investment of funds of the Board: 

(i) Government Obligations;

(ii) Investment Agreements;

(iii) direct obligations and fully guaranteed certificates of beneficial interest of
the Export-Import Bank of the United States; consolidated debt obligations and letter of 
credit-backed issues of the Federal Home Loan Banks; participation certificates and 
senior debt obligations of the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation ("FHLMCs"); 
debentures of the Federal Housing Administration; mortgage-backed securities ( except 
stripped mortgage securities which are valued greater than par on the portion of unpaid 
principal) and senior debt obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association 
("FNMAs"); participation certificates of the General Services Administration; guaranteed 
mortgage-backed securities and guaranteed participation certificates of the Government 
National Mortgage Association ("GNMAs"); guaranteed participation certificates and 
guaranteed pool certificates of the Small Business Administration; debt obligations and 
letter of credit-backed issues of the Student Loan Marketing Association; local authority 
bonds of the U.S. Department of Housing & Urban Development; guaranteed Title XI 
financings of the U.S. Maritime Administration; guaranteed transit bonds of the 
Washington Metropolitan Area Transit Authority; Resolution Funding Corporation 
securities. 

(iv) direct obligations of any state or territory of the United States of America
or any subdivision or agency thereof whose unsecured, uninsured and unguaranteed 
general obligation debt is rated, at the time of purchase, in one of the twe three highest 
Rating Categories by any two of Fitch, Moody's, Kroll and S&P, or any obligation fully 
and unconditionally guaranteed by any state, subdivision or agency whose unsecured, 
uninsured and unguaranteed general obligation debt is rated, at the time of purchase, in 
one of the two highest Rating Categories by any two of Fitch, Moody's, Kroll and S&P; 
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RESOLUTION NO. 982, 2024 .AMENDING 

BOND RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001 

(v) commercial paper (having original maturities of not more than 270 days)
rated, at the time of purchase, any two of the following: "F-1" by Fitch, "P-1" by 
Moody's and "A-1" by S&P and "Kl" by Kroll; 

(vi) federal funds, unsecured certificates of deposit, time deposits or bankers
acceptances (in each case having maturities of not more than 365 days) of any domestic 
bank including a branch office of a foreign bank which branch office is located in the 
United States, provided legal opinions are received to the effect that full and timely 
payment of such deposit or similar obligation is enforceable against the principal office 
or any branch of such bank, which is rated, at the time of purchase, any two of the 
following: "F-1" by Fitch, "P-1" by Moody's, "Kl" by Kroll and "A-1" by S&P; 

(vii) deposits of any bank or savings and loan association which has combined
capital, surplus and undivided profits of not less than $3 million, provided such deposits 
are continuously and fully insured by the Bank Insurance Fund or the Savings 
Association Insurance Fund of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"); 

(viii) investments in money-market funds rated in the highest Rating Category
of any two of Fitch, Moody's, Kroll and S&P; 

(ix) repurchase agreements collateralized by Government Obligations,
GNMAs, FNMAs or FHLMCs with any registered broker/dealer subject to the Securities 
Investors' Protection Corporation jurisdiction or any commercial bank insured by the 
FDIC, if such broker/dealer or bank has an uninsured, unsecured and unguaranteed 
obligation rated in one of the two highest Rating Categories by any two of Fitch, 
Moody's, Kroll and S&P, provided: 

(a) a master repurchase agreement or specific written repurchase agreement
governs the transaction; and 

(b) the securities are held free and clear of any lien by the Depositary or an
independent third party acting solely as agent ("Agent") for the Depositary, and such 
third party is (i) a Federal Reserve Bank, or (ii) a bank which is a member of the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation and which has combined capital, surplus and undivided 
profits of not less than $50 million, and the Depositary shall have received written 
confirmation from such third party that it holds such securities, free and clear of any lien, 
as agent for the Depositary; and 

( c) a perfected first security interest under the Uniform Commercial Code, or
book entry procedures prescribed at 31 C.F.R. 306.1 et seq. or 31 C.F.R. 350.0 et seq. in 
such securities is created for the benefit of the Depositary; and 

( d) the repurchase agreement has a term of three years or less, and the
Depositary or the Agent will value the collateral securities no less frequently than weekly 
and will liquidate the collateral securities if any deficiency in the required collateral 
percentage is not restored within two business days of such valuation; and 
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RESOLUTION NO. 982, 2024 .AMENDING 

BOND RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001 

( e) the fair market value of the securities in relation to the amount of the
repurchase obligation, including principal and interest, is equal to at least 100%. 

(x) investments in any mutual fund whose portfolio is limited to Government
Obligations and the investments described in clause (ii) of this definition of Investment 
Securities; and 

(xi) student loan resource securities including student loan auction rate
securities, student loan asset-backed notes, student loan program revenue notes and 
bonds, and securities issued pursuant to Rule 144A of the Securities Act of 1933, 
including any private placement issues, issued with either bond insurance or over 
collateralization guaranteed by the United States Department of Education, provided all 
insurers are rated in one of the three highest Rating Categozyies by Fitch, Moody's

1

Kroll or S&P. 

"Rating Agency" means any nationally recognized credit rating agency which has 
rated all or any Series of Bonds at the request of the Director of Budget and Fiscal 
Services, and may include Fitch, Moody's, Kroll and S&P. 

(b) The following definitions in Section 1.01 of the Resolution are hereby added
as follows: 

"Kroll" means Kroll Bond Rating Agency, LLC, its successors and their assigns 
and, if such corporation shall for any reason no longer perform the functions of a 
securities rating agency, "Kroll" shall be deemed to refer to any other nationally 
recognized rating agency, if any, designated by the Board. 

ARTICLE III 

EFFECTIVENESS OF THIS AMENDMENT TO RESOLUTION; AND 

EFFECTIVENESS OF OTHER PROVISIONS 

Section 3.01. Effectiveness of tl,is Amendment to Reso/11tion; Effectiveness of Otlrer 
Provisions. (1) The resolution amending the Resolution shall become effective upon the Board's 
receipt of consent of the Holders of not less than a majority of the Bonds then Outstanding. 

(2) Except as amended hereby, all of the other provisions of the Resolution shall continue
to be effective as the Resolution was originally adopted. 
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RESOLUTION NO. 982, 2024 .AMENDING 

BOND RESOLUTION NO. 717, 2001 

INTRODUCED BY: 

.,,,,{,L/4� 
NA'A.LEHU ANTHONY, C 
Date of Introduction: February 26, 2024 

�DOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 982, 2024, AMENDING 
WATER SYSTEM REVENUE BONDS RESOLUTION NO. 
717 2024 WAS ADOPTED ON FEBRUARY 26, 2024 

AYE NO COMMENT 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

KAPUA SPROAT X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA X 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN ABSENT 

GENE C. ALBANO ABSENT 

The above and foregoing resolution is 
hereby approved as to form and legality 
this February 26, 2024. 

�n(};!#= 
City and County of Honolulu 

Mo,ma A. Yost 
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ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 1 

UPDATE ON 
THE BOARD OF 
WATER SUPPL Y'S 
RESPONSE TO 
THE POTENTIAL 
IMPACTS OF 
RED HILL FUEL 
CONTAMINATION 

DISCUSSION: 

February 26, 2024 

"February 26, 2024 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Update on the Board of Water Supply's Response to the 
Potential Impacts of the Red Hill Fuel Contamination 

Joyce Lin, Civil Engineer IV, Office of the Manager and Chief Engineer, 

will give an Update on the Board of Water Supply's Response to the 
Potential Impacts of the Red Hill Fuel Contamination. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully Submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Joyce Lin, Civil Engineer IV, Office of the Manager and Chief Engineer, 
gave the report. 

Manager Lau shared that before the Community Representation Initiative 
(CRI) meeting, the BWS met with Honorable Brendan Owens, Assistant 
Secretary of Defense for Energy, Installations, and Environment; Mr. Ron 
Tickle, Deputy Assistant Secretary of Defense for Real Property; Vice 
Admiral Scott Gray, Commander of the Navy Installations Command; and 
Ms. Martha Guzman, Environmental Protection Agency Region 9 
Administrator, which was focused on the Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons 
(TPH) detected in the Joint Base Pearl Harbor Hickam (JBPHH) water 
system. The CRI meeting with the Navy, Environmental Protection 
Agency (EPA), and the Department of Health (DOH) was informative and 
had great discuss.ion. 

Chair Anthony commented that many community members are inquiring 
about the increase of TPH detected in the JBPHH water system. He 
asked Manager Lau to share his understanding of the situation. 

Manager Lau shared that three different semi-independent investigations 
are coinciding. One investigation is led by the Department of Defense 
(DOD) Swarm Team, a group of about 20 members, to determine where 
the TPH is coming from. In a discussion with Admiral Gray, it was said 
chlorine may be influencing the TPH detection; however, Manager Lau 
has not seen any data or any information that would provide evidence. 
He requested that the EPA and DOH keep him informed of any updates 
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February 26, 2024 

on the progress of the investigation. The request is to learn about the 
experiences after the exposure to fuel contamination and to understand 
the Navy's water system so the BWS can avoid going through the same 
issues. 

Vice Chair Sproat commends the leadership and staff at the BWS for 
choosing to shut down Halawa Shaft before risking the BWS water 
system to be exposed to contamination. She expressed her concern 
about the wash water and the use of a pressure washer and simple green 
in the tanks since the tanks are proven to leak. What further issues will 
the cleaning products cause or create within the vadose zone? 

Manager Lau shared that in a document he read, the regulators 
questioned the Navy regarding the closure process requiring the cleaning 
of 14 tanks. The tanks have not been completely defueled and must be 
done before the cleaning begins. The Navy's cleaning process stated in 
the document notes that each tank would be ventilated to prepare 
workers to enter, then pressure washed with a mixture of water and 
simple green. Manager Lau also pointed out on numerous occasions that 
the repercussions of releasing the wash water from the tanks into the 
environment could loosen any fuel already in the vadose zone and into 
the groundwater. The wash water must be treated and let into the 
environment. 

Vice Chair Sproat commented that using a pressure washer with simple 
green may be disastrous since the tanks are known to leak due to their 
condition. 

Manager Lau said he would share Vice Chair Sproat's concerns with the 
Navy. He also mentioned that he read in the "document" that 500,000 
gallons of water would be needed to clean 14 tanks. 

Chair Anthony echoed Vice Chair Kapua's concerns. He mentioned the 
spike of Total Petroleum Hydrocarbons (TPH) in Well 16 when it rained 
heavily, which seems to have come from past spills stuck in the vadose 
and loosened. 

Manager Lau stated that in the Red Hill Monitoring Well Two, located 
below tank five, TPH levels maintain 1000 parts per billion (ppb) or more 
and never get close to zero. Therefore, the BWS suspects there are 
deposits of fuel nearby that continue to contaminate the water in that 
area. 

Chair Anthony requested that the regulators be transparent during the 
process so everyone can understand and learn better. 

Manager Lau said he would press the EPA and the DOH to join a future 
BWS Board meeting. The question that needs to be discussed and 
answered is whether there is a safe level of TPH in drinking water. 
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Chair Anthony commented that if the regulators do not know the answer, 
they should say they do not. 

Vice Chair Sproat inquired 1) if the Navy will report the amount of wash 
water removed during cleanup since the amount of water that will be used 
for cleanup was stated; 2) will the Navy report if any of the tanks are 
damaged during the pressure wash cleanup; and 3) will the tanks be 
done at once or one at a time. 

Manager Lau responded to question three. The document noted that the 
cleanup of the tanks would be done two at a time; however, before 
workers can enter the tanks, the tanks must be ventilated. At the CRI 
meeting, the discussion mentioned that only two tanks would be 
ventilated to control the amount of vapors released into the environment 
and traveling to neighboring communities. 

Vice Chair Sproat asked if the Navy will be monitoring the air quality. 

Manager Lau replied that the DOH will require air monitoring to ensure 
the safety of surrounding communities. 

There was in-person testimony: 

Susan Pcola-Davis Shared her December 2023 to 

January 2024 findings of 

petroleum hydrocarbons, 

diesel, and petroleum 

hydrocarbons oil at various 

locations, including schools 

on the Navy water system. 

18-page attachment

provided.

Manager Lau appreciated the information shared on page 18, which 
provided the data collected from Waiawa Shaft and Halawa Shaft. 

Chair Anthony referred to page seven and said that he saw some 
detections as low as 106.2 and as high as 226.9. He asked what the 
trend line indicates. 

Ms. Susan Pcola-Davis replied that the trend line indicates that detections 
are not getting lower. 

Chair Anthony inquired if the same chart was organized by a specific 
address by date. 

Ms. Pcola-Davis responded that the addresses are in alphabetic order. 
The other chart(s) are by date. 
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Chair Anthony asked Ms. Pcola-Davis if she had copied and pasted her 
information from the Navy's website. 
Ms. Pcola-Davis confirmed. 

Manager Lau also referred to page seven and inquired if the addresses 
were listed from one side of the water system to the other or if the 
addresses were randomly picked. 

Ms. Pcola-Davis stated that the addresses are in alphabetical order. After 
carefully looking at the chart on page seven, she noticed that it wasn't in 
alphabetical order. 

Chair Anthony and Vice Chair Sproat pointed out that the first two 
addresses were out of order; however, the remaining addresses were 
alphabetical. 

Chair Anthony asked Manager Lau to confirm if the regulators set the 
environmental action level (EAL) to 266 parts per billion (ppb). 

Manager Lau confirmed that the EAL set by the regulators is 266 ppb. He 
also mentioned that the regulators have yet to set a drinking water 
standard, or what is also known as maximum contaminant level (MCL). 

Chair Anthony inquired about what would happen if the EAL exceeded 
the 266 ppb and how the analytes affect the EAL. 

Manager Lau commented that the EAL exceedance would trigger an 
action. In the long-term monitoring (L TM), there wasn't a health-based 
standard, just the EAL of 266 ppb. He commented that the water 
currently meets the drinking water standard; however, nothing that 
identifies the standards for the mixture TPH. Manager Lau mentioned 
that the Navy may be discussing what is regulated on an individual 
constituent or chemical basis. 

Chair Anthony commented that the BWS are not the operators of the 
water system and not the regulator; therefore, the BWS and the 
community wait to see more data to better understand what is happening 
with the water. 

Board Member Kaneshiro referred to page 13 and noticed four different 
samples. He asked Ms. Pcola-Davis if the samples were taken from 
various locations and why she thought there was a deviation in the 
concentration. 

Ms. Pcola-Davis replied that she doesn't know if the samples came from 
one location but believe the Navy is flushing the system as they receive 
complaints. However, flushing hasn't been confirmed. 

Vice Chair Sproat thanked Ms. Pcola-Davis for sharing her work but 
commented that the BWS are not the regulators and asked how she 
shares her information with the community. 
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Ms. Pcola-Davis replied that she testifies and shares her research at 
BWS Board meetings because she feels safe. However, depending on 
the circumstances, she shares her information at CRI and Fuel Tank 
Advisory Committee (FTAC) meetings but does not distribute any 
materials. 

There was remote testimony: 

JamieSimic 
*followed after Susan Pcola-Davis.

Expanded on Ms. Pco/a-Davis 's 

testimony and shared her 

findings, and the effects of past 

spills and leaks. 

Manager Lau thanked Ms. Jamie Simic for following the Red Hill issue 
since 2014; he remembers Mr. Steve Linder for the EPA. He mentioned 
that since the facility will be closing, he sent a letter to the Secretary of 
Defense to share the life history of Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Tanks. 

Ms. Jamie Simic agreed with Manager Lau and believes that more than 
jet fuel has been stored in the tanks. She stated that she does not want 
anyone else to experience what she and her family went through. 

There was in-person testimony: 

Susan Gorman-Chang 

Healani Sonoda-Pale 

Expressed her disappointment in 

the EPA and DOH for not taking 

every opportunity to engage with 

the public while dealing with the 

Red Hill catastrophe. She 

believes the EPA and DOH are 

enabling the Navy to say that the 

water is safe with the numbers 

that have been set. Written 

testimony was also provideded. 

Expressed her concerns with the 

continued reports of water 

contamination related to health 

issues, the lack of transparency, 

and the BWS rate hikes related to 

the Red Hill contamination. 

Written testimony was 

submitted, but had typos, 

therefore, will re-submit 

corrected copy. 

I 
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Chair Anthony stated that the BWS also has an issue with the EALs that 
have been recently set in comparison to the past and the value set for 
TPH without knowing which specific analytes or compounds are safe or 
not safe. TPH should not be in drinking water; therefore, it should be said 
if regulators are unsure. 

Ms. Healani Sonoda-Pale stated that Mr. Roger Brewer, a toxicologist at 
DOH, set the EAL based on "risk" standards, not on health standards, 
which can be found on the DOH website. 

Chair Anthony agreed with Ms. Sonoda-Pale. He commented that no 
available data determines the risk standards except taste and odor. If the 
community is getting sick from drinking water, the standards should be 
set higher, and the community should move forward with caution. 

Ms. Sonoda-Pale asked the BWS to keep the pressure on the regulators 
and the Navy. Please do not re-open the Halawa wells. 

Chair Anthony stated that the BWS water system provides clean drinking 
water islandwide through an integrated water system that can move water 
from one end to another unless jeopardized by contamination; therefore, 
the BWS must stay vigilant and persistent. 

Manager Lau expressed his appreciation for Ms. Sonoda-Pale mana'o. 
He stated that the BWS would look at the water rates when the Navy 
reimburses the BWS. Manager Lau commended the efforts and mana'o 
of the community, who stood alongside the BWS against the Navy to shut 
down the Red Hill Bulk Storage Facility. "Together, we can move 
mountains." 

There was in-person testimony: 

Lacey Quintero 

There was remote testimony: 

Tara Roja 

Echoed the disappointment in 

the EPA and DOH, and expressed 

her concerns with the ventilation 

process and cleaning process of 

the tanks, EALs, and LTM. 

Expressed concerns with the 

DOD lease and the lack of 

actions. She asked if the BWS 

would be in attendance at the 

DLNR and CWRM meeting to 

testify when the DOD's lease is 

up in 2029. Written testimony 

was also provided. 
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February 26, 2024 

At 4:21 PM, Chair Anthony called the meeting to a recess. 

At 4:29 PM, Chair Anthony call the meeting back to order. 
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ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 3 

CAPITAL 
IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM 
QUARTERLY 
UPDATE 

DISCUSSION: 

February 26, 2024 

"February 26, 2024 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Capital Improvement Program Quarterly Update 

Jadine Urasaki, Acting Program Administrator, Capital Projects Division, 

will provide an update on the Capital Improvement Program. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully Submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Jadine Urasaki, Acting Program Administrator, gave the report. There 
were no comments or discussion. 

Chair Anthony referred back to the first slide of the presentation and the 
number of ongoing projects, which is associated with Board Member 
Andaya's concern. He asked how many BWS staff members track all the 
construction projects. 

Ms. Urasaki stated there are four branch heads: 1) the Design and Plans 
Support Branch, 2) the Review Branch, 3) the Mechanical and Electrical 
Branch, and 4) the Construction Branch. 

Manager Lau shared that the BWS continues to be challenged with 16 
engineer vacancies in the Capital Projects Division, with hopes that two of 
those positions will be filled soon. 

Manager Lau also shared that Ms. Urasaki would be leaving the BWS. 
He praised and thanked her for helping discipline and structure the 
Capital Program Division. 

Ms. Urasaki thanked the Board for supporting the BWS through its 
challenges. 

Chair Anthony and Board Members all thanked Ms. Urasaki for her 
service. 
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ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 4 

FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS AND 
SUPPLEMENTARY 
INFORMATION 
WITH 
INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS' 
REPORT, 

DISCUSSION: 

February 26, 2024 

"February 26, 2024 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Financial Statements and Supplementary Information 
With Independent Auditors' Report, Fiscal Year Ended 
June 30 2023 

Our auditors, Accuity LLP, have completed the audit of the financial 

statements and federal awards of the Board of Water Supply and issued 
an unmodified opinion. They have indicated that there were no material 
weaknesses or significant deficiencies on internal control over the 
financial statements. 

Attached are copies of the financial statements of the Board of Water 
Supply and the reports thereon by Accuity LLP, covering the results of 
their examination of the accounts and financial status of the Board of 
Water Supply for the year ended June 30, 2023, as required under Article 
VII, Section 7-108 of the Revised Charter, are also attached. 

Donn Nakamura and Matthew Oda from Accuity LLP will present the 
required communications and highlights from the auditors' report. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Isl ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Donn Nakamura and Matthew Oda, Accuity LLP, gave the report. There 
were no comments or discussion. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Introduction (Unaudited) 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

The Board of Water Supply of the City and County of Honolulu ("BWS") is pleased to present its Annual Financial 

Report for fiscal year 2023. This introduction provides a brief overview of the mission, organization, and 

operations of the BWS. The following management's discussion and analysis is intended to provide the reader 

with an easily understandable analysis of the BWS's financial performance and all aspects of its financial position. 

Financial statements presenting the financial position, results of operations, and cash flows of the BWS in 
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, accompanied by 

the independent auditors' report, follows the management's discussion and analysis. 

History of the Board of Water Supply 

The BWS was created in 1929 by the Territorial Legislature in response to public outcry for a truly effective water 

management system that was not influenced by politics. The 1929 Legislature passed Act 96 to create and define 
the powers and duties of the Honolulu Board of Water Supply. Although it remained as a department of the City 

and County of Honolulu (the "City"), the BWS was designed to be a semi-autonomous and self-supporting agency 

with the authority to charge for water usage to support its capital improvement and operating expenses and set 
long-term plans for Oahu's water future. 

Powers, Duties and Functions 

The BWS manages Oahu's municipal water resources and distribution system, providing residents with a safe, 
dependable and affordable drinking water supply. The BWS is the largest municipal water utility in the state of 
Hawaii. In fiscal year 2023, the BWS delivered potable and non-potable water to approximately one million 
customers on Oahu. The BWS carefully and proactively manages and invests in its intricate system, consisting 

of 94 active potable water sources, 172 reservoirs, and over 2,100 miles of pipeline. 

The BWS is a financially self-sufficient, semi-autonomous agency of the City. Its operations and projects are 
financed with revenues generated by water transmission and distribution fees. It receives no tax money from 
the City. The BWS also pursues federal and state grants to help subsidize BWS projects. 

The BWS is governed by a Board of Directors ("Board"), consisting of seven members. Five members are 

appointed by the Mayor and are confirmed by the Honolulu City Council. The remaining two serve in their 
capacities as the Director of the State Department of Transportation, and the Director and Chief Engineer of 
the City's Department of Facility Maintenance. The Board appoints the BWS Manager and Chief Engineer to 

administer the BWS. 

The BWS consists of the following ten divisions: Capital Projects Division, Customer Care Division, Field Operations 
Division, Finance Division, Information Technology Division, Land Division, Office of the Manager and Chief 

Engineer, Water Quality Division, Water Resources Division, and Water System Operations Division. There are also 
three staff offices in the Office of the Manager and Chief Engineer: Executive Support Office, Human Resources 
Office, and the Communications Office. 

Vision 

'Ka Wai Ola - Water for Life' -The vision of the BWS captures the critical need for water, which is the basis for life. 
With this vision comes the responsibility of the BWS' s stewardship of, and duty to manage, our natural water 
resources and watersheds for present and future generations. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Introduction (Unaudited) 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Mission 

The BWS mission is to provide a safe, dependable and affordable water supply now and into the future, focusing 
in three strategic areas: resource, operational and financial sustainability. 

• Resource Sustainability (Safe)- Protect and manage Oahu's water resources and watersheds now and
into the future through adaptive and integrated strategies.

• Operational Sustainability (Dependable) - Manage and continuously refine an effective organization that
can evolve and adapt its human and physical resources to provide dependable services.

• Financial Sustainability (Affordable) - Implement sound fiscal strategies to support our mission.

Accomplishments 

BWS employees work diligently to provide safe, dependable and affordable water service to customers by 
concentrating their efforts to achieve the BWS's strategic goals: 

• Resource Sustainability (Safe)

► Conducted 18,323 chemical tests, 21,329 microbiological tests, and collected 24,912 samples from BWS
sources, distribution systems and treatment facilities to ensure all water served is safe to drink; tests
performed during fiscal year 2023 include regulatory compliance testing, groundwater quality testing,
and response to customer inquiries about water quality.

► Responded, and continue to respond, to the Navy's Red Hill Underground Bulk Fuel Storage Facility crisis
that resulted in the closure of Halawa Shaft, one of O'ahu's largest pumping stations, and two additional
wells in the 'Aiea/Halawa area; awarding of a design contract for exploratory wells in Waikele Gulch and
construction contracts for exploratory wells in Manoa and in 'Aiea as possible replacement sources for
the Halawa Shaft due to the Red Hill fuel contamination.

► In June 2023, BWS completed its annual production and delivery of the Consumer Confidence Report
("CCR"), also known as the Water Quality Report, to all BWS customers. The report provides information
on the quality of the water delivered from the BWS system and was mailed to all customers on record
and is also available at www.boardofwatersupply.com. The BWS also placed ads in Honolulu newspapers,
including various ethnic language publications, to inform community members of the distribution.

► Issued $173,633 in rebates and achieved an estimated freshwater savings of more than 11 million gallons
per year through the BWS water conservation rebate program for efficient toilets, clothes washing
machines, rain barrels, and weather-based irrigation controllers.

► The BWS sponsored its 45th annual Water Conservation Week Poster Contest and the 15th annual
Water Conservation Week Poetry Contest with 653 posters and 134 poems from 27 Oahu schools,
focused on the theme "How Do you Save Water?" All winning entries will be featured in the 2024
Water Conservation Calendar scheduled for distribution in December 2023.
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Introduction (Unaudited) 
Year Ended June 30, 2023 

• Operational Sustainability (Dependable)

► Responded to 353 main breaks, or about 17 breaks per 100 miles of pipeline, and conducted leak
detection surveys for 285 points of interest, which resulted in the Leak Detection Team finding and
repairing 428 leaks before major property damages or system interruptions occurred.

► BWS staff helped protect O'ahu's water resources and prevent damage to BWS infrastructure by handling
7,404 One Call underground pipeline location requests and providing in-field support for 609 water line
leaks and breaks. In fiscal year 2023, 15,062 meter investigations were conducted to ensure accurate and
timely billing and assisted 3,735 customers with concerns about bills reflecting high water consumption.
BWS staff assisted 100,452 customers: 72,336 (72%) by phone; 14,780 (15%) via web requests; 11,826
(11%) via ePortal service orders, and 1,510 (2%) in-person.

• Financial Sustainability (Affordable)

► The BWS Series 2023 water revenue bonds are rated AAA by S&P Global and AAA by Fitch Ratings.
This allows the board to access capital financing at reasonable rates.

► As of June 30, 2023, made appropriations of nearly $91 million in construction contracts and more than
$9 million in professional service contracts for projects to maintain and improve water system facilities,
including well and booster stations, reservoirs and corporation yards, and for the systematic replacement
of aging and deteriorated water mains and improvements for fire protection.

► Initiated design work for future construction of more than 14 miles of water main replacements in the
Hale'iwa, Kaimuki, Kane'ohe, Kapahulu, Liliha, Makiki, Nu'uanu, Sunset Beach, and Wahiawa areas.

► Initiated design work for more than three miles of water main replacements in the Ka'a'awa, Kahala,
Kapolei, Moanalua and Wailupe Valley areas. Awarded contracts for the construction of over 6.2 miles
of water main in Diamond Head, Kalama Valley, Moanalua, Nu'uanu, Palolo Valley, and Waikiki.

► Awarded design and construction contracts for renovations and improvements of the following BWS
facilities: 'Alewa Heights Booster No. 2, Barbers Point 215 Reservoir No. 1, Diamond Head 180 Reservoir,
'Ewa Shaft Tunnel, Halawa 550 Reservoir, Halawa Xeriscape Garden, Hale'iwa Wells, Honouliuli Wells,
Honouliuli Wells II, Ka'ahumanu Wells, Kailua Heights Booster, Kalihi Corporation Yard, Kapalama Wells,
Kunia Wells I, Kunia Wells II, Luluku Wells, Makakilo Booster No. 1, Makakilo Wells, Manana Wells, Mililani
1150 Reservoir No 1, Mililani 685 Reservoir, Mililani 994 Reservoir Nos. 1 and 2, Mililani Wells Ill, Mililani
Wells IV, Niu Valley Booster No. 1, 'Opana Wells, Pearl City Booster No. 3, Punalu'u Wells Ill, Punanani
Wells, POpOkea 600 Reservoir, Wahiawa 994 Reservoir, Wai'alae lki 1300 Reservoir, Waihe'e 265
Reservoir, Waimanalo 364 Reservoir Nos. 1 and 2, Waipahu Wells Ill, Waipi'o Acres 808 Reservoir,
and Waipi'o Heights Wells I.

► BWS processes payments through various methods: automatic bill payment (35.5%), lockbox (26%),
online customer portal (20.5%), BWS Cashiers (12%), Call Center (2%), automated pay-by-phone (2.5%),
Satellite City Hall locations (1%), and charitable organizations (0.5%).
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To the Board of Directors 

Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Opinion 

e> 
ACCUITY 

Report of Independent Auditors 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Board of Water Supply ("BWS"}, a 

component unit of the City and County of Honolulu (the "City"}, as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the BWS's basic 

financial statements as listed in the index. 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 

financial position of the BWS as of June 30, 2023, and the changes in its financial position and cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 

of America. 

Basis of Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States 
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 

report. We are required to be independent of the BWS, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 

in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Emphasis of Matter 

As discussed in Note 2, the financial statements present only the activities of the BWS, and do not purport 
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City as of June 30, 2023, the changes in its 

financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified 

with respect to this matter. 

Adoption of New Accounting Principle 

As discussed in Note 2, the BWS adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement 

No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements, in fiscal year 2023. Our opinion is not 

modified with respect to this matter. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 

in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and for 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 
or error. 

999 Bishop Street 

Suite 1900 

Honolulu. HI 96813

omce 808.531.3400 
FAX 808.531.3433 
accuityllp.com 



In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions 

or events, considered in the aggregate that raise substantial doubt about the BWS's ability to continue 
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known 

information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter. 

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report 

that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance 
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing 
standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 

from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood 
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user 

based on the financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 

Auditing Standards, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial

statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the BWS' s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the BWS's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable

period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 

matters that we identified during the audit. 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis on pages 7 through 13 and the schedules of proportionate share of the net 
pension liability, pension contributions, changes in the net OPES liability and related ratios, and OPEB 
contributions on pages 49 through 54 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. 
Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the GASB who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for 
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. 

G> 
ACCUITY 



We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that comprise
the BWS's basic financial statements. The schedules of bonds payable and net revenue requirement are 
presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The schedules of bonds payable and net revenue requirement are the responsibility of management and
was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and 
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
In our opinion, the schedules of bonds payable and net revenue requirement are fairly stated, in all 
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information comprises the introduction but does not include the basic financial statements and our
auditors' report thereon. Our opinion on the basic financial statements does not cover the other 
information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and 
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 
If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 15,
2023 on our consideration of the BWS's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of 
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other 
matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the BWS's internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering
the BWS's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Honolulu, Hawaii 
November 15, 2023
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2023 

This section presents management's discussion and analysis ("MD&A") of the financial condition and activities 
for the Board of Water Supply of the City and County of Honolulu ("BWS") for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
This information should be read in conjunction with the BWS's basic financial statements. 

Financial Highlights 

The BWS implemented the last of five rate increases on July 2022 to meet cost of delivering water to customers 
and to support the continuation of the capital improvements needed to meet the mission of the Board of Water 
Supply. In fiscal year 2023, water rates increased by approximately 4%, which equates to $3.74 of the monthly 
water charges for an average single-family residential customer effective July 1, 2022. 

The BWS maintains a relatively strong financial performance with a manageable capital program. Meanwhile, 
management continues to carefully evaluate the BWS's finances to ensure optimum performance. In addition to 
meeting all debt covenants, outstanding debt and cash reserves were kept at levels appropriate for maintaining 
favorable bond ratings. Key financial highlights are listed below: 

• Net position increased $46.0 million in fiscal year 2023 compared to the $30.8 million increase in fiscal year
2022.

• Total assets were $2.1 billion as of June 30, 2023 and $2.0 billion as of June 30, 2022, which exceeded
liabilities by $1.3 billion as of June 30, 2023 and 2022.

• The BWS's unrestricted current assets at June 30, 2023 were 7.7 times its related current liabilities compared
to 5.9 times at June 30, 2022.

• The BWS's debt-to-equity ratio was 40. 7% and 40.8% at June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, indicating the
continuance of capacity to issue additional debt.

Overview of the Financial Statements 

The BWS is a semi-autonomous agency of the City. The financial statements are presented using the economic 
resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues and expenses are recognized 
in the period earned or incurred. 

The MD&A represents management's analysis and comments on the BWS's financial condition and performance. 
Summary financial data, key financial and operational indicators used in the BWS's annual report, budget, bond 
resolutions, and other management tools were used for this analysis. 

The basic financial statements include the statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses, and 
changes in net position, statement of cash flows, and notes to the financial statements. The statement of net 
position presents the resources and obligations of the BWS as of the end of the reporting period. The statement 
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position presents the changes in net position for the fiscal year then 
ended, and the resultant ending net position balance. The statement of cash flows presents changes in cash 
and cash equivalents (short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition), resulting from operating, investing, capital and related financing activities, and non-capital financing 
activities. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2023 

Results of Operations 

Condensed Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

(Amounts in thousands) 

2023-2022 

Increase % 
2023 2022 (Decrease) Change 

Operating revenues $ 244,712 $ 248,264 $ (3,552) (1.4)% 
Operating expenses 

Administrative and general 68,375 63,969 4,406 6.9% 
Depreciation 53,381 49,776 3,605 7.2% 
Power and pumping 44,761 39,465 5,296 13.4% 
Other operating expenses 48,445 54,169 (S,724! (10.6)% 

Total operating expenses 214,962 207,379 7,583 3.7% 
Operating income 29,750 40,885 (11,135) (27.2)% 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Interest income 11,029 7,860 3,169 40.3% 
Interest expense (13,579) (10,925) (2,654) 24.3% 
Others, net !3,868! !26,517} 22,649 (85.4)% 

Total nonoperating expenses !6,418) (29,582) 23,164 (78.3)% 
Contributions in aid of construction 22,652 19,508 3,144 16.1% 

Change in net position $ 45,984 $ 30,811 $ 15,173 49.2% 

Operating revenues for the year ended June 30, 2023 totaled $244. 7 million compared to $248.3 million for the 
year ended June 30, 2022; a decrease of $3.6 million or 1.4% from the year ended June 30, 2022. This was due to 
the decrease in water consumption for the multi-family residential class by $1.5 million, and non-residential class 
by $1.1 million in fiscal year 2023. 

Total operating expenses increased by $7.6 million in fiscal year 2023. Factors contributing to this change are 
explained below: 

• Administrative and general increased by $4.4 million in fiscal year 2023. The increase is due to an increase in
payroll related costs, software license and maintenance, other contract service, and equipment under $5,000.

• Power and pumping increased by $5.3 million in fiscal year 2023, at the total of $44.8 million compared to
$39.5 million in fiscal year 2022. This increase was due to an increase in utility costs.

• Other operating expenses decreased by $5. 7 million during fiscal year 2023 mainly due to the decrease in
transmission maintenance costs and customers' accounting and collection. The decrease was offset by a small
increase in water reclamation.

For the year ended June 30, 2023, net non-operating revenues (expenses) increased by $23.2 million. This was the 
result of a decrease in net realized and unrealized loss on investments by $23.1 million and an increase in interest 
income by $3.2 million, which was offset by a decrease in federal grant revenue. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2023 
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Contributions in aid of construction result from Water System Facilities Charges ("WSFC") that are levied against all 
new developments and residential properties requiring water from the BWS's systems, except those developments 
that have paid for and installed a complete water system, including sources, transmission, and daily storage 
facilities. In addition, contributions of capital assets from governmental agencies, developers and customers are 
recorded as contributions in aid of construction at their cost. The BWS realized contributions in aid of construction 
of $22.7 million in fiscal year 2023 compared to $19.5 million in fiscal year 2022. The increase was primarily due 
to increases of $3.3 million in contributions by the government, one-time SRF debt forgiveness of $1.0 million, and 
decreases of $1.2 million in WSFC collections. During the year ended June 30, 2023, the major developments were 
Ho'opili Development Phase 4 Backbone Roadway Improvements, University of Hawaii - West Oahu Off-Site Water 

Improvements, and HART City Center Utilities and Roadway. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Management's Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited) 

June 30, 2023 

Finam;ial Condition 

Condensed Statements of Net Position 
(Amounts in thousands) 

2023-2022 

Increase % 
2023 2022 (Decrease) Change 

Current assets $ 348,588 $ 223,138 $ 125,450 56.2% 
Noncurrent assets 
Capital assets, net 1,366,641 1,334,941 31,700 2.4% 
Investments 224,594 285,596 (61,002) (21.4)% 
Restricted and other assets 196,113 201,259 {5,146) (2.6)% 

Total assets 2,135,936 2,044,934 91,002 4.5% 
Deferred outflows of resources 45,215 44,773 442 1.0% 

Total assets and deferred 

outflows of resources $ 2,181,151 $ 2,089,707 $ 91,444 4.4% 

Current liabilities $ 104,656 $ 65,991 $ 38,665 58.6% 
Noncurrent liabilities 
Bonds payable, noncurrent 393,665 391,396 2,269 0.6% 
Notes payable, noncurrent 129,810 118,582 11,228 9.5% 
Net pension liability 121,159 106,764 14,395 13.5% 
Net OPEB liability 30,887 42,752 (11,865) (27.8)% 
Other liabilities 17,458 16,602 856 5.2% 

Total liabilities 797,635 742,087 55,548 7.5% 
Deferred inflows of resources 38,561 48,648 (10,087) (20.7)% 
Net position 
Net investment in capital assets 1,033,479 1,021,085 12,394 1.2 % 
Restricted for capital activity and debt service 15,741 24,790 (9,049) (36.5)% 
Unrestricted 295,735 253,097 42,638 16.8% 

Total net position 1,344,955 1,298,972 45,983 3.5% 
Total liabilities, deferred inflows 

of resources, and net position $ 2,181,151 $ 2,089,707 $ 91,444 4.4% 

The BWS's current assets were 3.3 and 3.4 times its related current liabilities as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, 
respectively. Current cash and cash equivalents increased by $30.8 million, and current liabilities also increased

by $38. 7 million for the year ended June 30, 2023. 
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Noncurrent restricted and other assets decreased by $5.1 million in fiscal year 2023. The decrease is primarily due 

to the decrease in investments during fiscal year 2023. 

Bonds payable increased by $4.0 million as of June 30, 2023. The increase is attributed to the issuance of Series 

2023 Bonds that resulted in the receipt of net bond proceeds of $19.3 million during fiscal year 2023, offset by 

scheduled debt service payments in fiscal year 2023. 

Notes payable increased by $12.2 million as of June 30, 2023. The increase is due to the receipt of loan proceeds 

for new projects utilizing financing from the state revolving fund loan program totaling $20.7 million. 

The net pension liability increased by $14.4 million as of June 30, 2023, which was mainly due to an increase in the 

BWS's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability and unfavorable net difference between projected 

and actual investment earnings. 

The net OPEB liability decreased by $11.9 million as of June 30, 2023, which was mainly due to a decrease in the 

OPEB expense and favorable net difference between expected and actual experience and favorable change in 

assumptions. 

Capital Assets and Long-Term Debt 

During fiscal years 2023 and 2022, the BWS placed into service $71.7 million and $80.6 million, respectively, to 

its utility plant in service. Major assets added during fiscal year 2023 were Kamehameha Heights water system 

improvements of $10.1 million; Emergency Generators at Kali hi Yard and Shaft, Halawa Shaft, and Kunia Wells I 

of $8.9 million; Ala Aolani 12-lnch Water Main of $6.7 million; Anoi Road Water System Improvements of $6.4 

million; and Lualualei Line Booster Station Improvements of $5.7 million. 

The BWS issues long-term bonds to finance part of its capital improvement program. The BWS has maintained 

a low debt to equity ratio at 40.7% and 40.8% as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 
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Outstanding Series 2020 through 2023 bonds have been assigned underlying ratings of AAA from S&P Global, and 
either AA+ or AAA from Fitch. Outstanding Series 2014 bonds have been assigned underlying ratings of AA+ from 

Fitch and Aa2 from Moody's, 

Rate Covenant 

The BWS is required under its bond indenture, among other things, to fix, charge and collect such rates and other 
charges in each fiscal year to meet the net revenue requirement for such fiscal year. The net revenue requirement 
is the greater of (1) the sum of the aggregate debt service and all deposits required by bond resolution to be made, 
or (2) 1.20 times the aggregate debt service. The BWS met the net revenue requirements for the year ended 
June 30, 2023. 

Novel Coronavirus (COVID-19) 

The unprecedented outbreak of COVID-19 caused economic and operational uncertainties for government and the 
private sectors beginning in 2020. In 2023, the BWS did not see a significant overall impact to revenues. Annual 
residential revenues decreased by $1.lM or 0.6%. Annual non-residential revenues decreased by $1.lM or 1.3%. 

Total revenue decreased by $3.6M or 1.4%. The average delinquency rate is 11.53% and 10.95% for fiscal years 
2023 and 2022, respectively. 

To assist with the costs incurred by COVID-19, the BWS received federal COVID-19 funding of approximately 
$902,000 and $13,000 in fiscal years 2021 and 2020, respectively. BWS did not receive federal COVID-19 funding 
in fiscal years 2022 and 2023. 

Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Facility 

The U.S. Navy's Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Facility ("RHBFSF") consists of 20 steel-lined underground storage tanks 
that were built from 1940 to 1943. Each tank is 100 feet in diameter and 250 feet tall. The RHBFSF can store up 
to 250 million gallons of fuel. The tanks are located 100 feet above the groundwater aquifer that the Navy uses 
to provide water to Pearl Harbor and the Board of Water Supply also uses to provide drinking water to its 
metropolitan Honolulu water system, spanning from Moanalua Valley to Hawaii Kai. Following the 27,000 
gallon leak of jet fuel in January 2014, the Navy entered into an Administrative Order of Consent with the U.S. 
Environmental Protection Agency and Hawaii State Department of Health to conduct various studies to improve 
tank inspection, repair and maintenance practices, understand the condition of the tanks, identify upgrade 
alternatives, assess the risk of future leaks, determine the area's groundwater flow direction, and investigate and 
remediate releases. 

The Navy's RHBFSF experienced additional leaks in 2021. On December 2, 2021, the BWS shut down the Halawa 
Shaft pumping station to prevent any fuel contamination of the BWS Honolulu water system. The Halawa Shaft 
delivers 20% of the water delivered to the metropolitan Honolulu water system. On December 8, 2021, the BWS 
also shut down its 'Aiea Well and Halawa Well to prevent such contamination. 

The BWS is pumping at higher rates from other well stations that also serve metropolitan Honolulu to make up 
for the production loss from shutting down the Halawa Shaft, 'Aiea Well, and Halawa Well. This condition is being 
monitored closely as extended pumping at higher rates can cause water salinity levels to rise and affect both 
the aquifer and the water pumped. Presently, the situation with the BWS wells serving urban Honolulu is stable. 
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However, extended closure of these three sources could result in mandatory water conservation measures and 

moratoriums on new water use to prevent the effects of over-pumping other well stations. 

On March 7, 2022, Lloyd Austin, Secretary of Defense, announced that the Navy would permanently close the 

RHBFSF. Defueling the tanks began in October 2023. The Navy continues to work to determine the nature and 

extent of the contamination in the aquifer affecting its Red Hill Shaft water source. This finding is critical to 

determining the long-term impact of the contamination on the aquifer and to existing water sources in the area. 

On August 4, 2022, polycyclic aromatic hydrocarbons (PAHs), chemicals indicating petroleum contamination, 

were detected in BWS ground water monitoring well DH-43 located in Moanalua Valley. The individual PAH levels 
are very low and not expected to pose a significant threat to human health or the environment. Further study is 
warranted and BWS will increase the testing of its wells to monitor for any changes in levels and occurrence. The 

closure of the BWS sources was done to prevent any petroleum contamination in the aquifer from reaching those 

sources and ultimately entering the BWS urban Honolulu water system. 

The BWS is tracking the costs of its actions in response to this incident. The BWS cannot predict the ultimate costs 
of these actions or whether and to what extent itwill be reimbursed by the Navy. The BWS's 2018 Long Range 

Financial Plan developed a scenario for handling a major water source contamination event. The related financial 
impact on the BWS's financial statements cannot be reasonably determined at this time. 

Requests for Information 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the BWS's finances. Questions concerning any 

of the information provided in this report or request for additional financial information should be addressed to 
the Board of Water Supply, City and County of Honolulu, 630 S. Beretania Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96843. 
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Assets 

Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Interest receivable 

Customer receivables 

Billed, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of approximately $4,210,000 

Unbilled 

Other receivables, less allowance for uncollectible accounts of approximately $511,000 

Materials and supplies 

Prepaid expenses 

Restricted assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets 

Capital assets 

Infrastructure 

Building and improvements 

Equipment and machinery 

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization 

Land 

Construction work in progress 

Net capital assets 

Investments 

Restricted assets 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Other assets 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Deferred Outflows of Resources 

Deferred loss on refunding of debt and other 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 

Total deferred outflows of resources 

Total assets and deferred outflows of resources 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 69,101,296 

167,355,923 

2,335,713 

16,678,949 
11,196,741 

949,040 
11,074,300 
1,487,627 

68,408,289 
348,587,878 

1,704,420,117 

207,114,752 
410,634,864 

2,322,169,733 
(1,258,001,603) 
1,064,168,130 

32,370,754 
270,101,624 

1,366,640,508 
224,594,153 

20,618,192 
172,514,643 

2,980,703 

1,787,348,199 
2,135,936,077 

12,921,861 
23,671,394 
8,621,792 

45,215,047 
$2,181,151,124 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
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June 30, 2023 

Liabilities 

Current liabilities 

Payable from current assets 

Accounts payable 

Contracts payable, including retainages 

Accrued vacation, current portion 

Accrued workers' compensation, current portion 

Other 

Total payable from current assets 

Payable from restricted assets 

Contracts payable, including retainages 

Accrued interest payable 

Bonds payable, current portion 

Notes payable, current portion 

Refundable advances 

Total payable from restricted assets 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities 

Bonds payable, noncurrent portion 

Notes payable, noncurrent portion 

Net pension liability 

Net OPEB liability 

Accrued vacation, noncurrent portion 

Accrued workers' compensation 

Customer advances 

Claims liabilities 

Other 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 

Deferred inflows of resources related to leases 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Net Position 

Net investment in capital assets 

Restricted for capital activity and debt service 

Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and net position 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 19,700,689 
9,031,539 
3,144,186 
1,019,317 
3,351,506 

36,247,237 

13,074,436 
6,725,780 

14,845,000 
8,463,073 

25,300,000 
68,408,289 

104,655,526 

393,664,819 
129,809,722 
121,159,266 
30,887,069 
4,703,928 
2,440,947 
1,436,541 
3,255,206 
5,621,481 

692,978,979 
797,634,505 

12,069,391 
23,968,781 
2,522,990 

38,561,162 

1,033,480,114 
15,740,549 

295,734,794 
1,344,955,457 

$2,181,151,124 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Operating revenues 

Water sales 

Other, principally contract and service fees 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses 

Administrative and general 

Depreciation 

Power and pumping 

Transmission and distribution 

Maintenance 

Water reclamation 

Customers' accounting and collection 

Central administrative services expense fees 

Source of supply 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) 

Interest income 

Interest expense, net of amortization of bond premiums of approximately $2,228,000 

Bond issuance costs 

Loss from disposal of capital assets 

Net decrease in the fair value of investments 

Federal grant revenue 

Other 

Total nonoperating expenses, net 

Contributions in aid of construction 

Change in net position 

Net position 

Beginning of year 
End of year 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 

16 

$ 242,482,076 

2,230,241 

244,712,317 

68,374,907 

53,380,554 

44,760,828 

24,265,197 

10,671,934 

6,075,576 

3,931,620 

3,300,000 

201,151 

214,961,767 

29,750,550 

11,028,764 

(13,579,252) 

(341,610) 

(353,379) 

(3,547,028) 

30,927 

342,596 

(6,418,982) 

22,651,942 

45,983,510 

1,298,971,947 
$1,344,955,457 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Cash received from customers 

Payments to suppliers for goods and services 
Payments to employees for services 
Other 

Net cash provided by operating activities 
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 
Customer payments for capital projects 
Federal grants received 
Net proceeds from bond issuance 
Principal paid on bonds 
Interest paid on bonds 
Proceeds from notes payable 
Interest paid on notes payable 
Principal paid on notes payable 
Lease receipts 
Lease and subscription payments 

Net cash used in capital and related financing activities 
Cash flows from investing activities 
Purchase of investments 
Proceeds from maturity of investments 
Interest on investments 

Net cash provided by investing activities 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Beginning of year 
End of year 

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to the statement of net position 
Un restricted 
Restricted 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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s 244,889,425 

(103,151,820) 
(61,308,875) 
(2,471,959) 
77,956,771 

(62,306,132) 
6,395,601 

25,330,927 
18,999,999 

(13,145,000) 
(11,331,131) 
20,744,003 
(1,751,118) 
(7,553,867) 

162,410 
{127,393) 

(24,581,701) 

(179,644,335) 
194,569,002 
10,554,899 
25,479,566 
78,854,636 

79,273,141 
$ 158,127,777 

$ 69,101,296 
89,026,481 

$ 158,127,777 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities 

Depreciation and amortization 

Provision for doubtful accounts 

Changes in operating assets, deferred outflows of resources, 

operating liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources 

Customer receivables 

Other receivables 

Materials and supplies 

Prepaid expenses and other 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 

Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 

Accounts and contracts payable 

Accrued vacation 

Accrued workers' compensation 

Other liabilities 

Net pension liability 

Net OPEB liability 

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

Supplemental schedule of noncash investing, capital, and related financing activities 

Changes in fair value of investments 

Forgiveness of principal due on notes payable 

Contributions of capital assets from government agencies, developers 

and customers that are recorded as contributions in aid of construction 

Capital asset additions included in contracts and accounts payable at year-end 

Subscription asset additions included in equipment and machinery at year-end 

Bond issuance costs deducted from bond proceeds 

Amortization of bond premium, net, and other costs 

Amortization of deferred loss on refunding 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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$ 29,750,550 

53,380,554 

557,116 

60,125 
{68,319) 

617,155 

1,091,458 

(3,440,266) 
1,382,651 

2,767,827 
(10,353) 

(1,013,600) 

664,078 

14,395,412 

(11,865,066) 

(11,855,785) 
1,543,234 

$ 77,956,771 

$ (3,547,028) 
1,000,000 

14,873,960 
22,105,936 
1,768,996 

341,610 
2,228,256 
1,615,232 



Board of Water Supply 
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1. Operations

The Revised Charter of the City and County of Honolulu provides for the operation of the Board of Water

Supply ("BWS") as a semi-autonomous body of the City and County of Honolulu (the "City") government.

The BWS has full and complete authority to manage, control and operate the City's water system and

related properties.

Article VII of the Revised Charter of the City and County of Honolulu states that the BWS's seven-member

Board of Directors has the authority to establish and adjust water rates and charges so that the revenues

derived shall be sufficient to make the BWS self-supporting. The Board of Directors is required to follow
certain procedures that include holding publlc hearings before Implementing changes in the water rate

schedules.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Financial Statement Presentation

The BWS is a component unit of the City (the "primary government"). The accompanying financial

statements present only the financial position and activities of the BWS and do not purport to, and

do not present the financial position of the City, the changes in its financial position, or its cash flows.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting

The accompanying financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus

and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and

expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,

and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported

amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant items subject to such

estimates and assumptions include the carrying amount of capital assets, valuation allowances for

receivables, accrued workers' compensation, and pensions and postretirement benefits. Actual results

could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the BWS considers all cash on hand, demand deposits, and

short-term investments (including restricted assets) with original maturities of three months or less from

the date of acquisition to be cash and cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are measured at fair value. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset
or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement

date. The cost of securities sold is generally determined by the weighted average method.
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Receivables 

Receivables are recorded at the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. The allowance for doubtful 
accounts is the BWS's best estimate of the amount of probable credit losses in the BWS's existing 
receivables. The BWS determines the allowance based on past collection experience and the length 
of time individual receivables are past due. Account balances are charged off against the allowance 
after all means of collection have been exhausted and the potential for recovery is considered remote. 

Materials and Supplies 

Materials and supplies are stated at weighted average cost (which approximates the first-in, first-out 
method). The cost of materials and supplies are recorded as expenses when consumed rather than 
when purchased. 

Restricted Assets 

Restricted assets are comprised of cash and cash equivalents and investments maintained in accordance 
with bond resolutions and other agreements for the purpose of funding certain debt service payments, 
construction, improvements, and renewal and replacements of the water system. When both restricted 
and unrestricted assets are available for use, it is the BWS's policy to use restricted assets first, then 
unrestricted assets as they are needed. Restricted assets comprise the following: 

• The debt service account accumulates transfers from the operating account throughout the
fiscal year to make principal and interest payments on the outstanding water system revenue
bonds and other notes payable.

• The renewal and replacement account and the reserve release fund provide funding
for improvements, reconstruction, emergency or extraordinary repairs, and renewals
or replacements of the water system.

• The improvement account holds the proceeds of the series bond issuance pursuant to the
series resolution or series certificates. These proceeds are only applied to costs specified
in the applicable series resolution or series certificates.

• The extramural account holds reimbursements received from any governmental agency or
private entity, pursuant to negotiated agreements, contracts and/or grants.

Capital Assets 

Capital assets include those assets in excess of $5,000 for buildings, infrastructure, and equipment 
and machinery with a useful life of more than one year. Capital assets are stated at cost and include 
contributions by governmental agencies, private subdividers, and customers at their cost or estimated 
cost of new construction. 

Major replacements, renewals and betterments are capitalized. The BWS also capitalizes certain indirect 
costs to construction work based upon actual construction direct labor. Maintenance, repairs and 
replacements that do not improve or extend the lives of the assets are charged to expense. 

Assets are depreciated over the individual assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method. 
Depreciation on both purchased and contributed assets is charged against operations. 

20 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2023 

The estimated useful lives of capital assets are as follows: 

Source of supply plant 
Pumping plant 
Water treatment plant 
Transmission and distribution plant 
General plant 

20 to 100 years

20 to 50 years 
20 to 30 years 
13-1/3 to 50 years
5 to 50 years

Gains or losses resulting from the sale, retirement or disposal of capital assets in service are credited or 
charged to nonoperating revenues (expenses}. 

Leases - Lessee 

The BWS has a policy to recognize a lease liability and a right-to-use lease asset ("ROU asset'') in the 
statement of net position. The BWS recognizes lease liabilities with an initial, individual value of $5,000 
or more and a lease term greater than one year. Variable payments based on future performance of the 
lessee or usage of the underlying asset are not included in the measurement of the lease liability. 

At the commencement of a lease, the BWS initially measures the lease liability at the present value of 
payments expected to be made during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the 
principal portion of lease payments made. 

ROU assets are recorded at the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities and modified 
by any lease payments made to the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term, less any 
lease incentives received from the lessor at or before the commencement of the lease term along with 
any initial direct costs that are ancillary charges necessary to place the ROU asset into service. ROU assets 
are amortized using the straight-line method over the shorter of the lease term or the useful life of the 
underlying asset, unless the lease contains a purchase option that the BWS has determined reasonably 
certain of being exercised. In this case, the ROU asset is amortized over the useful life of the underlying 
asset. 

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the BWS determines (1) the discount rate 
it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) the lease term, and (3) lease 
payments. 

• The BWS uses the interest rate charged by the lessor as the discount rate. When the interest rate
charged by the lessor is not provided, the BWS generally uses its estimated incremental borrowing
rate as the discount rate for leases.

• The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease as well as any periods covered by
the BWS's option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant factors, that
the BWS will exercise that option. Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability
are composed of fixed payments and purchase option price that the BWS is reasonably certain to
exercise.

The BWS monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and will 
remeasure any ROU asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly affect 
the amount of the lease liability. The BWS's ROU assets and lease liabilities are recorded in equipment 
and machinery and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the statement of net position. 
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Leases - Lessor 

The BWS is a lessor for leases of special purpose utility facilities, office and commercial space. The BWS 
recognizes lease receivables and deferred inflows of resources in the financial statements with an initial, 

individual value of $5,000 or more and a lease term greater than one year. Variable payments based on 
future performance of the lessee or usage of the underlying asset are not included in the measurement 
of the lease receivable. 

At the commencement of a lease, the BWS initially measures the lease receivable at the present value of 
payments expected to be received during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease receivable is reduced 
by the principal portion of the lease payments received. The deferred inflows of resources are initially 
measured as the initial amount of the lease receivable, adjusted for lease payments received at or before 
the lease commencement date. Subsequently, the deferred inflows of resources are recognized as 
revenue over the life of the lease term in a systematic and rational method. 

Key estimates and judgments include how the BWS determines (1) the discount rate it uses to discount 
the expected lease receipts to present value, (2) the lease term, and (3) lease receipts. 

• The BWS uses its estimated incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

• The lease term includes the noncancellable period of the lease as well as any periods covered by the
lessee's option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant factors, that the
lessee will exercise that option. Lease receipts included in the measurement of the lease receivable
are composed of fixed payments from the lease.

The BWS monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its lease and 
will remeasure the lease receivable and deferred inflows of resources if certain changes occur that 
are expected to significantly affect the amount of the lease receivable. The BWS's lease receivables 
are recorded in other assets in the statement of net position. 

Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements ("SBITA") 

The BWS has a policy to recognize a subscription liability and a right-to-use subscription asset 
("subscription asset") in the statement of net position. The BWS recognizes subscription liabilities 
with an initial, individual value of $5,000 or more and a term greater than one year. 

At the commencement of an arrangeme'nt, the BWS initially measures the subscription liability at the 
present value of payments expected to be made during the term. Subsequently, the subscription liability 
is reduced by the principal portion of payments made. 

Subscription assets are recorded at the amount of the initial measurement of the subscription liabilities, 
less any payments made to the SBITA vendor before the commencement of the subscription term, and 
capitalizable initial implementation cost, less any incentives received from the SBITA vendor at or before 
the commencement of the subscription term. Subscription assets are amortized using the straight-line 
method over the shorter of the term or the useful life of the underlying asset unless the agreement 
contains a purchase option that the BWS has determined reasonably certain of being exercised. In this 
case, the asset is amortized over the useful life of the underlying asset. 
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Key estimates and judgments related to SBITAs include how the BWS determines (1) the discount rate 

it uses to discount the expected payments to present value, (2) the term, and (3) payments. 

• The BWS uses the interest rate charged by the SBITA vendor as the discount rate. When the interest

rate charged by the lessor is not provided, the BWS generally uses its estimated incremental

borrowing rate as the discount rate for the arrangement.

• The term includes the noncancellable period of the arrangement as well as any periods covered by
the BWS's option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain, based on all relevant factors, that

the BWS will exercise that option. Payments included in the measurement of the subscription liability
are composed of fixed payments and purchase option price that the BWS is reasonably certain to

exercise.

The BWS monitors changes in circumstances that would require a remeasurement of its SBITA and will 
remeasure any subscription asset and liability if certain changes occur that are expected to significantly 
affect the amount of the subscription liability. The BWS's subscription assets and liabilities are recorded 

in equipment and machinery and other noncurrent liabilities, respectively, in the statement of net 

position. 

Bond Issue Prepaid Insurance Costs, Original Issue Discounts or Premiums, and 

Deferred Loss on Refunding of Debt 

Bond issue costs are expensed when incurred, except for prepaid insurance, which are amortized over the 

life of the respective issue on a straight-line basis. Bond issue prepaid insurance costs are presented as 
other assets in the statement of net position. 

Original issue discounts or premiums are amortized using the effective interest method over the terms of 
the respective issues. Original issue discounts or premiums are offset against or added to bonds payable 

in the statement of net position. 

Deferred loss on refunding of debt is amortized using the straight-line method over the remaining life of 
the refunded debt or the life of the new debt, whichever is shorter. The deferred loss on refunding of 

debt is presented as deferred outflows of resources in the statement of net position. 

Accrued Vacation and Compensatory Pay 

Vacation is earned at the rate of one and three-quarters working days for each month of service. 
Vacation days may be accumulated to a maximum of 90 days as of the end of the calendar year and 
are convertible to pay upon termination. The BWS accrues a liability for compensated absences and 

additional amounts for certain salary-related payments including payroll taxes and fringe benefits. 

As of June 30, 2023, accumulated sick leave aggregated approximately $19,839,000. Sick leave 

accumulates at the rate of one and three-quarters working days for each month of service without limit, 
but can be taken only in the event of illness and is not convertible to pay upon termination of 
employment. However, an employee who retires or leaves government service in good standing with 
60 or more unused sick days is entitled to additional service credit in the State of Hawaii's Employees' 
Retirement System. 
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Net Position 

Net position represents the difference between assets and deferred outflows of resources less liabilities 

and deferred inflows of resources. Net position is classified in the following three components: net 

investment in capital assets, restricted for capital activity and debt service, and unrestricted. Net 

investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by 

outstanding debt that is attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

Debt related to unspent proceeds or other restricted cash and investments at year-end is not included in 
the calculation of net investment in capital assets. Restricted for capital activity and debt service consists 

of net position for which constraints are placed thereon by external parties, such as lenders, grantors, 
contributors, laws, regulations or enabling legislation. Unrestricted consists of the remaining balance 

not included in the above categories. 

Operating Revenues and Expenses 

The BWS distinguishes operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues 

and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with the BWS's principal ongoing 

water operations. The principal operating revenues are derived from charges for water usage, while 

operating expenses include cost of services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. 

All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 

expenses. 

Revenue Recognition 

Charges for water sales are based on usage. The BWS's policy is to bill customers on a cyclical monthly 

basis. The accrual for unbilled water revenues and related receivables reflected in the accompanying 
financial statements is based on estimated usage from the latest meter reading date to the end of the 

fiscal year. 

Contributions in Aid of Construction 
Contributions in aid of construction represent cash or capital assets received by the BWS to aid in the 

construction of infrastructure assets. It also includes the forgiveness of principal due on state revolving 
fund loans that were used to finance the costs of infrastructure needed to maintain the water system. 

Contributions in aid of construction are recognized when they are accepted by the BWS and when all 

applicable eligibility requirements have been met. 

Water System Facilities Charge 
A water system facilities charge is levied against all new developments and residential properties 

requiring water from the BWS's systems, except those developments that have paid for and installed a 

complete water system, including source, transmission and daily storage facilities. The amounts collected 

are initially recorded as customer advances and are recognized as contributions in aid of construction 
when water service is made available to the customer. The use of these funds is designated for the 

construction of water facilities. 

Pensions 
For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows 
of resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the 

Employees' Retirement System of the State of Hawaii (the "ERS") and additions to/deductions from the 
ERS's fiduciary net position have been determined using the accrual basis of accounting, which is the 

same basis as they are reported by the ERS. For this purpose, employer and member contributions are 

recognized in the period in which the contributions are legally due, and benefit payments (including 
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refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance with benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value. 

Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions ("OPEB") 
For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the Hawaii 
Employer-Union Health Benefits Trust Fund ("EUTF") and additions to/deductions from the EUTF's 
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the EUTF. For this 
purpose, the EUTF recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit 
terms. Investments are reported at fair value, except for investments in commingled and money market 
funds, which are reported at net asset value ("NAV"). The NAV is based on the fair value of the underlying 
assets held by the respective fund less its liabilities. 

Deferred Compensation Plan 

All full-time employees are eligible to participate in the City and County of Honolulu's Public Employees' 
Deferred Compensation Plan (the "Plan"), adopted pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 457. 
The Plan permits eligible employees to defer a portion of their salary until future years. The deferred 
compensation amounts are not available to employees until termination, retirement, death or 
unforeseeable emergency. 

A trust fund was established to protect plan assets from claims of general creditors and from diversion to 
any uses other than paying benefits to participants and beneficiaries. Accordingly, the BWS has excluded 
the Plan's assets and liabilities from the financial statements because the BWS and the City do not have 
significant administrative involvement in the Plan nor perform the investment function for the Plan. 

Risk Management 
The BWS is exposed to various risks of loss from: (1) torts, (2) theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets, (3) employee injuries and illnesses, (4) natural disasters, and (5) employee health, dental, and 
accident benefits. Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters. 

The ranges of insurance limits and deductibles are as follows: 

Limit 

Policy (in millions) Deductibles 

Property $60 $ 100,000 

Public entity liability 15 1,000,000 

Excess workers' compensation 25 600,000 

Employment practices 5 100,000 

Storage tank liability 5 10,000 

Pollution legal liability 5 250,000 

Crime 5 25,000 

Cyber liability 3 100,000 

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverages from the prior fiscal year. 
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New Accounting Pronouncements 

GASB Statement No. 94 

The GASB issued Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment 
Arrangements. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve financial reporting by addressing 
issues related to public-private and public-public partnership arrangements ("PPPs"). As used in this 
Statement, a PPP is an arrangement in which a government (the transferor) contracts with an operator 
(a governmental or nongovernmental entity) to provide public services by conveying control of the right 
to operate or use a nonfinancial asset, such as infrastructure or other capital asset (the underlying PPP 
asset), for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. This Statement also provides 
guidance for accounting and financial reporting for availability payment arrangements ("APAs"). As 
defined in this Statement, an APA is an arrangement in which a government compensates an operator 

for services that may include designing, constructing, financing, maintaining or operating an underlying 
nonfinancial asset for a period of time in an exchange or exchange-like transaction. The requirements of 
this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2022. BWS did not have any 

such arrangements as of June 30, 2023. 

GASB Statement No. 96 

The GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements. This 
Statement provides guidance on the accounting and financial reporting for SBITA for government end 
users. This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a right-to-use subscription 
asset- an intangible asset - and a corresponding subscription liability; (3) provides the capitalization 
criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including implementation costs of a SBITA; and 
(4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA.

The adoption of Statement No. 96 resulted in the recording of SBITA assets and liabilities related to 
various arrangements at July 1, 2022, in accordance with the provisions of this Statement. SBITA liabilities 
and assets of approximately $572,000 were reported as of July 1, 2022. The adoption of Statement 
No. 96 did not result in a restatement of beginning net position. Refer to Note 12 for more information 
on the BWS's SBITAs. 

GASB Statement No. 99 

The GASB issued Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022. This Statement enhances comparability in accounting 
and financial reporting and improves the consistency of authoritative literature by addressing (1) practice 
issues that have been identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements and 

(2) accounting and financial reporting for financial guarantees. Certain requirements of this Statement
are effective upon issuance, while other requirements are effective for periods beginning after June 15,
2022 and periods beginning after June 15, 2023. The BWS adopted the relevant provisions of the
Statement effective in fiscal year 2023 with no material effect to its financial statements. The provisions

adopted clarifies key terms relevant to previously issued Statements. Management has not determined
the effect this Statement will have on the BWS's financial statements for requirements effective beginning

after June 15, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 100 

The GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections. This statement enhances 
accounting and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide 
more understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent and comparable information for making decisions or 
assessing accountability. This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2023. 
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Management has not yet determined the effect this Statement will have on the BWS's financial 

statements. 

GASB Statement No. 101 

The GASS issued Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences. This statement aims to better meet the 

information needs of financial statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance 

for compensated absences. That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement 

guidance under a unified model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. This Statement 

is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2023. Management has not yet determined the 

effect this Statement will have on the BWS' s financial statements. 

3. Cash and Investments

Cash deposited with the City is maintained by the Department of Budget and Fiscal Services of the City. 

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is used by all of the City's Funds and the BWS. The 

Hawaii Revised Statutes ("HRS") provide for the City's Director of Finance to deposit the cash with any 

national or state bank or federally insured financial institution authorized to do business in the State of 
Hawaii, provided that all deposits are fully insured or collateralized. The City's demand deposits are fully 

insured or collateralized with securities held by the City or its agents in the City's name. 

The HRS authorizes the BWS to invest, with certain restrictions, in obligations of the State of Hawaii or 
the United States of America, in federally insured savings accounts, time certificates of deposit, and bank 

repurchase agreements with federally insured financial institutions authorized to do business in the State 

of Hawaii. The BWS's portfolio is managed by various investment managers. These investments consist 

of U.S. Treasury obligations and U.S. government agencies securities. 

Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Generally, the longer the term of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 

to changes in market interest rates. As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses, the BWS 
invests operating funds primarily in shorter-term securities, money market mutual funds, or similar 

investment pools. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 

institution, a government will not be able to recover deposits or will not be able to recover collateral 

securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The custodial credit risk for investments is the 
risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a government will not be able 
to recover the value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. 

Excluding cash deposited with the City, all cash, money market mutual funds, and investment securities 
as of June 30, 2023 were held in trust by two financial institutions in the State of Hawaii. 

All investment securities are registered in the name of the BWS and are not exposed to custodial credit 

risk. Money market mutual funds are not considered investment securities for purposes of custodial 
credit risk classification and are not exposed to custodial credit risk. Cash held in trust with these financial 
institutions are uncollateralized, however, amounts in excess of depository insurance are covered by 
commercial insurance obtained by each financial institution designed to insure against losses resulting 
from errors and omissions or fraud. 
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Credit Risk and Concentration of Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its obligation to 

the holder of the investment. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss attributed to the magnitude 

of a government's investment in a single issuer. As of June 30, 2023, all investment securities and money 
market mutual funds were rated Aaa and Aaa-mf, respectively, by Moody's Investors Services. The BWS's 

concentration of credit risk related to investments in debt securities has been mitigated by limiting such 

investments to only debt obligations of the U.S. government and U.S. government agencies. 

The historical cost and estimated fair value of investments at June 30, 2023 consisted of the following: 

U.S. Treasury obligations 

U.S. government agencies 

Cost 

$ 482,631,176 

107,052,282 

$ 589,683,458 

Fair Value 

$ 461,532,907 

102,931,812 

$ 564,464,719 

As of June 30, 2023, the credit exposure as a percentage of total investments was as follows: 

Percent 

ofTotal Fair Value 

U.S. Treasury obligations 82 % $ 461,532,907 

U.S. government agencies 

Federal National Mortgage Association 4% 24,840,535 

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 2% 12,367,237 

Federal Home Loan Bank 10% 57,858,408 

Federal Farm Credit Bank 2% 7,865,632 
100% $ 564,464,719 

The fair value of investments by contractual maturity at June 30, 2023 is shown below: 

U.S. Treasury obligations 

U.S. government agencies 

4. Restricted Assets

Investment Maturities (In Years) 

Fair Value Less Than 1 1 - 5 

$ 461,532,907 $ 225,465,322 $ 236,067,585 

102,931,812 35,650,445 67,281,367 
$564,464,719 $261,115,767 $303,348,952 

At June 30, 2023, the BWS's restricted assets were comprised of cash, cash equivalents, and investments
and were held for the following purposes:

Construction, renewals and replacements 

Debt service 

28 

$ 219,100,285 

42,440,839 

$ 261,541,124 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

S. Fair Value Measurements

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

• Level 1- Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that a government can access at the measurement date.

• Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for an asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term,
the Level 2 input must be observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. Level 2
inputs include:

► Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets.

► Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active.

► Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability.

► Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data
by correlation or other means.

• Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable for an asset or liability.

Following is a description of the valuation techniques used by the BWS to measure fair value: 

• U.S. Treasury obligations - Valued using quo�ed prices in active markets for identical assets.

• U.S. government agencies obligations - Valued using quoted prices for identical or similar assets
in markets that are not active.

The following table sets forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, assets measured at fair value on a 
recurring basis as of June 30, 2023: 

U.S. Treasury obligations 
U.S. government agencies 

Total 
$ 461,532,907 

102,931,812 
$ 564,464,719 
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Assets at Fair Value 
Levell Level2 

$ 461,532,907 $ 
102,931,812 

$ 461,532,907 $ 102,931,812 

Level3 

$ 

$ 
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6. Capital Assets

Capital assets activity during the year ended June 30, 2023 was as follows: 

Balance 

July 1, 2022 Additions Transfers 

{As Restated) 

Depreciable assets 

Infrastructure $1,656,768,159 s 30,880,819 s 18,171,020 
Building and improvements 203,251,118 3,846,756 44,519 
Equipment and machinery 392,700,801 14,387,408 4,325,851 
Leased equipment and machinery 924,991 
Subscription assets 572,040 1,768,996 

Total depreciable assets 2,254,217,109 50,883,979 22,541,390 
Less: accumulated depreciation (1,209,524,734) (52,996,062) 669,340 
Less: accumulated amortization (285,837) !384,492)

Total depreciable assets, net 1,044,406,538 {2,496,575} 231210,730 
Land 32,370,754 
Construction work in progress 258?35,549 34,576,805 p3,210,730) 

Capital assets, net $1,335,512,841 s 32,080,230 s 

Balance 

Retirements June 30, 2023 

s (1,399,881) $1,704,420,117 
(27,641} 207,114,752 

(4,045,223) 407,368,837 
924,991 

2
1
341,036 

(5,472,745} 2,322,169,733 
4,520,182 (1,257,331,274} 

!670,329)
(952

1
563) 1,064,168,130 

32,370,754 
270,101,624 

s (952,563) $ 1,366,640,508 

Depreciation charges allocated to various functions for the year ended June 30, 2023 totaled 
approximately $2,425,000. 

7. Bonds Payable

At June 30, 2023, bonds payable consisted of the following: 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014A, annual principal due 

commencing from July 1, 2023, ranging from $930,000 to $4,470,000 

through July 1, 2031, with interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2014B, annual principal due 

ranging from $1,540,000 to $1,845,000 through July 1, 2028, 

with interest ranging from 2.92% to 3.59%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2020A, annual principal due 

ranging from $1,035,000 to $3,165,000 through July 1, 2049, 

with interest ranging from 2.50% to 5.0%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2020B, annual principal due 

ranging from $580,000 to $5,370,000 through July 1, 2033, 

with interest ranging from 1.66% to 2.38%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021A, annual principal due 

ranging from $855,000 to $2,955,000 through July 1, 2050, 

with interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2021B, annual principal due 

ranging from $60,000 to $8,155,000 through July 1, 2031, 

with interest ranging from 0.36% to 2.07%. 

Subtotal 
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Subtotal carried forward 

Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022A, annual principal due 

ranging from $1,385,000 to $4,290,000 through July 1, 2051, 
with interest ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. 
Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2022B, annual principal due 

ranging from $55,000 to $8,770,000 through July 1, 2036, 
with interest ranging from 1.90% to 3.14%. 
Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2023, annual principal due 
ranging from $565,000 to $885,000 through July 1, 2048, 
with interest of 5.0%. 

Add: Unamortized premium 

Less: Current portion 
Noncurrent portion 

228,420,000 

82,700,000 

52,020,000 

17,425,000 
380,565,000 
27,944,819 

408,509,819 
14,845,000 

$ 393,664,819 

The BWS has pledged future revenues, net of specified operating and maintenance expenses, for the 
security and payment of the water system revenue bonds outstanding. Proceeds from the bonds were 
used to finance the construction of various components of the water system or to refund the principal 
amounts of previously issued water system revenue bonds. As of June 30, 2023, the total principal and 
interest remaining to be paid on the bonds totaled $551,099,000. Aggregate debt service for the current 
year and revenues, net of specified operating and maintenance expenses, were approximately 
$27,244,000 and $94,160,000, respectively. 

The BWS's outstanding revenue bonds contain a provision that, in the event of a default, the holders 
of not less than 25% of the bonds may declare the principal and interest due immediately. An event of 
default includes, but is not limited to, the following situations: failure to pay the principal and interest 
due, failure to punctually perform any of the covenants, agreements or conditions of the resolution, and 
bankruptcy. The BWS has covenanted and agreed to maintain the water system in good repair; to fix 
rates and charges sufficient to meet the Net Revenue Requirement, as defined in the bond indenture; 
not to dispose of the properties comprising the water system; to maintain and keep proper books; and 
other actions consistent with conducting the business of the water system in an efficient and economical 
manner. 

In March 2023, the BWS issued $17,425,000 in Water System Revenue Bonds, Series 2023, to fund the 
costs of certain improvements, betterments and extensions of the Water System. 

As of June 30, 2023, the total amount of debt defeased for financial reporting purposes that remains 
outstanding was $52,285,000. 

Water system revenue bonds are subject to redemption on and after specific dates prior to maturity at 
the option of the BWS. The redemption amount equals the outstanding principal amount plus accrued 
interest without premium on the date of redemption. 
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8. 

Debt service requirements on bonds payable at June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Principal Interest 

Years ending June 30, 

2024 $ 14,845,000 $ 12,573,000 

2025 15,370,000 12,235,000 

2026 17,375,000 11,637,000 

2027 17,955,000 11,059,000 

2028-2032 97,500,000 47,554,000 

2033-2037 80,465,000 33,419,000 

2038-2042 39,535,000 22,856,000 

2043-2047 47,750,000 14,627,000 

2048-2053 49,770,000 4,574,000 

$ 380,565,000 $ 170,534,000 

Notes Payable 

At June 30, 2023, notes payable from direct borrowings consisted of the following: 

Notes payable to Department of Health 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $146,900, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.5% per annum, due May 2034. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $145,900, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.5% per annum, due May 2034. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $144,000, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.5% per annum, due November 2034. 

Non-interest bearing note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately 

$202,000, including loan fees at 1.0% per annum, due November 2034. 

Non-interest bearing note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately 

$764,900, including loan fees at 1.0% per annum, due April 2034. 

Non-interest bearing note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately 

$258,700, including loan fees at 1.0% per annum, due December 2037. 

Non-interest bearing note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately 

$865,600, including loan fees at 1.0% per annum, due February 2039. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $148,300, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.5% per annum, due October 2036. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $231,800, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.25% per annum, due October 2038. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $418,500, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.75% per annum, due October 2039. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $175,700, 

including interest and loan fees at 0.25% per annum, due April 2040. 

Subtotal 
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Total 

$ 27,418,000 

27,605,000 

29,012,000 

29,014,000 

145,054,000 

113,884,000 

62,391,000 

62,377,000 

54,344,000 

$ 551,099,000 

$ 2,790,528 

2,771,888 

2,843,151 

4,093,582 

14,892,821 

6,967,725 

25,538,725 

3,609,545 

6,509,775 

11,933,243 

6,187,030 

88,138,013 
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Subtotal carried forward 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $119,500, 

including interest and loan fees at 2.15% per annum, due March 2039. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $364,500, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.75% per annum, due October 2040. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $193,400, 

including interest and loan fees at 2.15% per annum, due January 2040. 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $349,300, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.75% per annum, due October 2041. 

Note payable to other lenders 

Note payable in semi-annual installments of approximately $577,100, 

including interest and loan fees at 1.75% per annum, due October 2042. 

Note payable in monthly installments of approximately $15,700, 

including interest at 5.0%, due September 2025. 

Less: Current maturities 
Noncurrent portion 

88,138,013 

3,324,565 

10,940,610 

5,489,510 

10,995,479 
118,888,177 

19,000,000 

384,618 

138,272,795 

8,463,073 
$ 129,809,722 

The notes payable to the Department of Health are state revolving fund loans and are secured by 
the net revenue of the BWS, subject to and subordinate to the pledge of the net revenue securing 
the outstanding water system revenue bonds described in Note 7. Proceeds from the loans were used 
to finance the construction of various components of the water system. As of June 30, 2023, the total 
principal, interest and loan fees remaining to be paid on the loans totaled $155,258,000. Aggregate debt 
service for the current year and revenues, net of specified operating and maintenance expenses, were 
approximately $27,244,000 and $94,160,000, respectively. The BWS's outstanding state revolving fund 
loans contain a provision that, in the event of default, the outstanding amounts become due immediately 
with the consent of the majority of the holders of the BWS' s revenue bonds. An event of default includes, 
but is not limited to, the following situations: failure to pay the principal and interest due; failure to 
punctually perform any of the covenants, agreements or conditions of the resolution; and bankruptcy. 
The BWS has covenanted and agreed to maintain the water system in good repair; to fix rates and charges 
sufficient to meet the Net Revenue Requirement, as defined in the bond indenture; not to dispose of the 
properties comprising the water system; to maintain and keep proper books; and other actions consistent 
with conducting the business of the water system in an efficient and economical manner. 
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Debt service requirements on notes payable from direct borrowings at June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Principal Interest Loan Fee Total 

Years ending June 30, 

2024 $ 8,463,000 $ 445,000 $ 1,491,000 $ 10,399,000 
2025 8,552,000 420,000 1,402,000 10,374,000 
2026 8,502,000 387,000 1,312,000 10,201,000 
2027 8,555,000 361,000 1,221,000 10,137,000 
2028 8,648,000 335,000 1,129,000 10,112,000 
2029-2033 44,680,000 1,284,000 4,230,000 50,194,000 
2034-2038 36,846,000 617,000 1,933,000 39,396,000 
2039-2043 14,027,000 88,000 330,000 14,445,000 

$ 138,273,000 $ 3,937,000 $ 13,048,000 $ 155,258,000 

9. Long-Term Liabilities

Changes in long-term liabilities for the year ended June 30, 2023 are as follows: 

Balance Balance Current 

July 1, 2022 Additions Reductions June 30, 2023 Portion 

(As Restated) 

Bonds payable $ 376,285,000 $ 17,425,000 s {13,145,000) $ 380,565,000 s 14,845,000 
Add: Unamortized premium 28,256,465 1,916,610 (2,228,256) 27,944,819 

Total bonds payable 404,541,465 19,341,610 (15,373,256) 408,509,819 14,845,000 
Notes payable 126,082,659 20,744,052 (8,553,916) 138,272,795 8,463,073 
Accrued vacation 7,858,467 3,133,833 {3,144,186) 7,848,114 3,144,186 
Accrued workers' compensation 4,473,864 108,000 {1,121,600) 3,460,264 1,019,317 
Customer advances 1,818,922 6,759,744 (7,142,125) 1,436,541 
Net pension liability 106,763,854 64,569,340 {50,173,928) 121,159,266 
Net OPEB liability 42,752,135 16,078,729 (27,943,795) 30,887,069 
Claims liability 3,054,319 1,540,763 (1,339,876) 3,255,206 
Lease liability 647,841 173,244 (282,890) 538,195 
Subscription liability 572,040 1,700,041 {235,374) 2,036,707 
Other 2,902,142 622,112 !477,675) 3,046,579 

$701,467,708 $134,771,468 $ {115,788,621) $ 720,450,555 $ 27,471,576 
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10. Net Position

11. 

The BWS's net position consisted of the following as of June 30, 2023: 

Net investment in capital assets 

Capital assets, net $1,366,640,508 
Deferred loss on refunding of debt 12,921,861 
Less: Water system revenue bonds payable (408,509,819) 
Less: Notes payable (138,272,795) 
Unspent debt proceeds 200,700,359 

1,033,480,114 
Restricted for capital activity and debt service 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 89,026,481 
Restricted investments 172,514,643 
Less: Unspent debt proceeds (200,700,359) 
Less: Accrued interest payable (6,725,780) 
Less: Contracts payable (13,074,436) 
Less: Refundable advances (25,300,000) 

15,740,549 
Unrestricted 295,734,794 

$1,344,955,457 

Leases 

The BWS leases certain properties to other users, primarily utility and telecommunications companies, 
under multi-year license agreements with terms ranging from five to thirty years through December 2041. 
At June 30, 2023, lease receivables of approximately $2,660,000 were reported in other assets. For the 
year ended June 30, 2023, lease revenue and interest revenue of approximately $154,000 and $114,000, 
respectively, were reported in other nonoperating revenues. 

The BWS leases space for its deep seawater cooling project on Oahu under a lease that extends through 
September 2025. The BWS also has leases conveying the right to use various office and information 
technology equipment under contracts that extend through August 2027. 

12. Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements

The BWS has agreements conveying the right to use various information technology systems under 
contracts that extend through April 2028. 
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13. 

The future principal and interest requirements for the subscription liability at June 30, 2023 are 
as follows: 

Principal Interest 

Years ending June 30, 

2024 $ 649,000 $ 74,000 $ 

2025 669,000 45,000 

2026 383,000 21,000 

2027 168,000 10,000 

2028 168,000 3,000 

Total 

723,000 

714,000 

404,000 

178,000 

171,000 

$ 2,037,000 $ 153,000 $ 2,190,000 

Related Party Transactions 

The BWS has an agreement with the City's Department of Environmental Services to provide certain 
services relating to the billing and collection of sewer service charges. For the year ended June 30, 2023, 
fees related to these services totaled approximately $3,786,000, which are netted against operating 
expenses on the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net position. 

The BWS has an agreement with the City to pay a central administrative services expense ("CASE") fee for 
treasury, personnel, purchasing and other services that the City provides to the BWS on an on-going basis. 
The BWS's Charter allows for CASE fees to the extent that they represent reasonable charges for services 
necessary for the BWS to perform its duties. CASE fees totaled $3,300,000 for the year ended June 30, 
2023. 

As of June 30, 2023, amounts due from the City for water charges totaled approximately $1,101,000, and 
are included in customer receivables in the statement of net position. 

The BWS has entered into several agreements with the City for joint capital projects. As of June 30, 2023, 

the unexpended advanced funds totaled approximately $956,000. 

14. Retirement Benefits

Pension Plan 

Plan Description 

The Employees' Retirement System ("ERS") is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee 
retirement system established as a defined benefit pension plan to administer a pension benefits program 
for all eligible employees of the state and counties of Hawaii. Benefit terms, eligibility, and contribution 

requirements are governed by Chapter 88 of the HRS and can be amended through legislation. The ERS 
issues publicly available annual financial reports that can be obtained at the ERS website: 
http://ers.ehawaii.gov/resources/ financials. 

Benefits Provided 

The ERS Pension Trust is comprised of three pension classes for membership purposes and considered to 
be a single plan for accounting purposes since all assets of the ERS may legally be used to pay the benefits 
of any of the ERS members or beneficiaries. The ERS provides retirement, disability and death benefits 
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with three membership classes known as the noncontributory, contributory and hybrid retirement 
classes. The three classes provide a monthly retirement allowance equal to the benefit multiplier 
(generally 1.25% or 2.25%) multiplied by the average final compensation multiplied by years of credited 
service. Average final compensation for members hired prior to July 1, 2012 is an average of the highest 
salaries during any three years of credited service, excluding any salary paid in lieu of vacation for 
members hired January 1, 1971 or later and the average of the highest salaries during any five years of 
credited service including any salary paid in lieu of vacation for members hired prior to January 1, 1971. 
For members hired after June 30, 2012, average final compensation is an average of the highest salaries 
during any five years of credited service excluding any salary paid in lieu of vacation. 

Each retiree's original retirement allowance is increased on each July 1 beginning the calendar year after 
retirement. Retirees first hired as members prior to July 1, 2012 receive a 2.5% increase each year of 
their original retirement allowance without a ceiling. Retirees first hired as members after June 30, 2012 
receive a 1.5% increase each year of their original retirement allowance without a ceiling. The annual 
increase is not compounded. 

The following summarizes the provisions relevant to the largest employee groups of the respective 
membership class. Retirement benefits for certain groups, such as police officers, firefighters, some 
investigators, sewer workers, judges, and elected officials, vary from general employees. 

Noncontributory Class 

• Retirement Benefits - General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 1.25% of average
final compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. Employees with ten years of credited
service are eligible to retire at age 62. Employees with thirty years of credited service are eligible to
retire at age 55.

• Disability Benefits - Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length
of service and receive a lifetime pension of 35% of their average final compensation. Ten years of
credited service are required for ordinary disability. Ordinary disability benefits are determined in
the same manner as retirement benefits but are payable immediately, without an actuarial reduction,
and at a minimum of 12.5% of average final compensation.

• Death Benefits - For service-connected deaths, the surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary receives
a monthly benefit of 30% of the average final compensation until remarriage or re-entry into a new
reciprocal beneficiary relationship. Additional benefits are payable to surviving dependent children
up to age 18. If there is no spouse/reciprocal beneficiary or surviving dependent children, no benefit

is payable.

Ordinary death benefits are available to employees who were active at the time of death with at least 
ten years of credited service. The surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary (until remarriage/re-entry 
into a new reciprocal beneficiary relationship) and surviving dependent children (up to age 18) 
receive a benefit equal to a percentage of the member's accrued maximum allowance unreduced for 
age or, if the member was eligible for retirement at the time of death, the surviving spouse/reciprocal 
beneficiary receives 100% joint and survivor lifetime pension and the surviving dependent children 
receive a percentage of the member's accrued maximum allowance unreduced for age. 

37 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

Contributory Class for Members Hired Prior to July 1, 2012 

• Retirement Benefits - General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 2% of average final
compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. General employees with five years of

credited service are eligible to retire at age 55.

• Disability Benefits - Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length
of service and receive a one-time payment of the member's contributions and accrued interest plus
a lifetime pension of 50% of their average final compensation. Ten years of credited service are
required for ordinary disability. Ordinary disability benefits are determined as 1.75% of average
final compensation multiplied by the years of credited service but are payable immediately, without

an actuarial reduction, and at a minimum of 30% of average final compensation.

• Death Benefits - For service-connected deaths, the designated surviving spouse/reciprocal

beneficiary receives a lump sum payment of the member's contributions and accrued interest plus
a monthly benefit of 50% of the average final compensation until remarriage or re-entry into a new
reciprocal beneficiary relationship. If there is no surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary, surviving
dependent children (up to age 18) or dependent parents are eligible for the monthly benefit. If there

is no spouse/reciprocal beneficiary or surviving dependent children/parents, the ordinary death
benefit is payable to the designated beneficiary.

Ordinary death benefits are available to employees who were active at time of death with at least

one year of service. Ordinary death benefits consist of a lump sum payment of the member's
contributions and accrued interest plus a percentage of the salary earned in the twelve months

preceding death, or 50% joint and survivor lifetime pension if the member was not eligible for
retirement at the time of death but was credited with at least ten years of service and designated
one beneficiary, or 100% joint and survivor lifetime pension if the member was eligible for retirement
at the time of death and designated one beneficiary.

Contributory Class for Members Hired After June 30. 2012 

• Retirement Benefits - General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 1. 75% of average
final compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. General employees with ten years of
credited service are eligible to retire at age 60.

• Disability and Death Benefits - Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless
of length of service and receive a lifetime pension of 50% of their average final compensation plus

refund of contributions and accrued interest. Ten years of credited service are required for ordinary
disability.

Death benefits for contributory members hired after June 30, 2012 are generally the same as those

for contributory members hired June 30, 2012 and prior.
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Hybrid Class for Members Hired Prior to July 1. 2012 

• Retirement Benefits- General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 2% of average

final compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. General employees with five years
of credited service are eligible to retire at age 62. General employees with thirty years of credited

service are eligible to retire at age 55.

• Disability Benefits - Members are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of

service and receive a lifetime pension of 35% of their average final compensation plus refund of their
contributions and accrued interest. Ten years of credited service are required for ordinary disability.
Ordinary disability benefits are determined in the same manner as retirement benefits but are

payable immediately, without an actuarial reduction, and at a minimum of 25% of average final
compensation.

• Death Benefits - For service-connected deaths, the designated surviving spouse/reciprocal
beneficiary receives a lump sum payment of the member's contributions and accrued interest plus
a monthly benefit of 50% of the average final compensation until remarriage or re-entry into a new

reciprocal beneficiary relationship. If there is no surviving spouse/reciprocal beneficiary, surviving
dependent children (up to age 18) or dependent parents are eligible for the monthly benefit. If there

is no spouse/reciprocal beneficiary or surviving dependent children/parents, the ordinary death

benefit is payable to the designated beneficiary.

Ordinary death benefits are available to employees who were active at time of death with at least 

five years of service. Ordinary death benefits consist of a lump sum payment of the member's 

contributions and accrued interest plus a percentage multiplied by 150%, or 50% joint and survivor 
lifetime pension if the member was not eligible for retirement at the time of death but was credited 
with at least ten years of service and designated one beneficiary, or 100% joint and survivor lifetime 
pension if the member was eligible for retirement at the time of death and designated one 

beneficiary. 

Hybrid Class for Members Hired After June 30
1 2012 

• Retirement Benefits- General employees' retirement benefits are determined as 1.75% of average

final compensation multiplied by the years of credited service. General employees with ten years of
credited service are eligible to retire at age 65. Employees with thirty years of credited service are
eligible to retire at age 60. Sewer workers, water safety officers, and emergency medical technicians

may retire with 25 years of credited service at age 55.

• Disability and Death Benefits - Provisions for disability and death benefits generally remain the same
except for ordinary death benefits. Ordinary death benefits are available to employees who were
active at time of death with at least ten years of service. Ordinary death benefits consist of a lump

sum payment of the member's contributions and accrued interest, or 50% joint and survivor lifetime
pension if the member was not eligible for retirement at the time of death but was credited with at

least ten years of service and designated one beneficiary, or 100% joint and survivor lifetime pension
if the member was eligible for retirement at the time of death and designated one beneficiary.

39 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

Contributions 

The employer contribution rate is a fixed percentage of compensation. The employer contribution rate 
for general employees was 24% for the year ended June 30, 2023. For the year ended June 30, 2023, 
contributions to the pension plan from the BWS totaled approximately $11,377,000. 

The employer is required to make all contributions for noncontributory members. For contributory class 
employees hired prior to July 1, 2012, general employees are required to contribute 7.8% of their salary. 
For contributing class employees hired after June 30, 2012, general employees are required to contribute 
9.8% of their salary. Hybrid class members hired prior to July 1, 2012 are required to contribute 6.0% 
of their salary. Hybrid class members hired after June 30, 2012 are required to contribute 8.0% of their 
salary. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources 

and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2023, the BWS reported a liability of approximately $121,159,000, for its proportionate share 
of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2022, and the total 
pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation 
as of those dates. The BWS's proportion of the net pension liability was based on the actual employer 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the contributions of all participating employers. At June 30, 
2022, the BWS's proportionate share was 0.93%. 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the BWS recognized pension expense of approximately $10,476,000. 
At June 30, 2023, the BWS reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to pensions from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 2,174,225 $ 1,753,990 
Changes of assumptions 177,776 1,536,787 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on pension plan investments 5,243,950 
Changes in proportion and differences between employer 

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 9,942,828 3,534,664 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 11,376,565 

$ 23,671,394 $ 12,069,391 
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At June 30, 2023, the BWS reported approximately $11,377,000 of deferred outflows of resources related 
to pensions resulting from BWS contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be 
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts 
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources at June 30, 2023 will be 
recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Net Deferred 

Inflows 

Years ending June 30, 

2024 $ (522,915) 
2025 (100,082) 
2026 (2,358,251) 
2027 3,160,309 

2028 46,377 
$ 225,438 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability in the June 30, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following 
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 

Investment rate of return, including inflation 

Salary increases, including inflation 

General employees 

2.50 % 

7.00 % 

3. 75% to 6. 75%

Mortality rates used in the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022 were based on the following: 

• Active members - Scale MP2021 mortality table for active employees based on the occupation
of the member.

• Healthy retirees-The 2022 Public Retirees of Hawaii mortality tables. The rates are projected on a
fully generational basis by the long-term rates of scale UMP from the year 2022 and with multiplier
and setbacks based on plan and group experience.

• Disabled retirees- Base table for healthy retirees' occupation, set forward three years, generational
projection using the UMP projection table from the year 2022. Minimum mortality rate of 3.5% for
males and 2.5% for females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022 were based on the results 
of an experience study as of June 30, 2021, with most of the assumptions based on the period from July 1, 
2016 through June 30, 2021. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a "top down 
approach" of the Client-Constrained Simulation-based Optimization Model (a statistical technique known 
as "re-sampling with replacement" that directly keys in on specific plan-level risk factors as stipulated by 
the ERS Board) in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
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ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
nominal real rates of return (real returns + inflation) by the target asset allocation percentage. The rate of 
returns, based on ERS's investment consultant as of June 30, 2022, are summarized in the following table: 

Strategic Allocation 

(Risk-Based Classes) 

Broad growth 

Diversifying strategies 

*Uses an expected inflation of 2.5%.

Discount Rate 

Target 

Allocation 

63.00% 

37.00% 
100.00% 

Expected Long-Term 

Geometric Average 

Strategic Range* 

8.00% 

5 .10% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability at June 30, 2022 was 7 .00%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employee contributions will be made at 
the current contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made at statutorily required 

rates, actuarially determined. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was 
projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive 
employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 

to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the BWS's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the BWS' s proportionate share of the net pension liability calculated as of the year 
ended June 30, 2023 using the discount rate of 7.00%, as well as what the BWS's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point 
lower or one percentage point higher than the current rate: 

Proportionate share of the net pension liability 

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position 

1%Decrease 

(6.00%) 

$ 162,352,824 

Current 

Discount Rate 

(7.00%) 

$ 121,159,266 

1% Increase 

(8.00%) 
$ 87,058,860 

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued 
ERS financial report. ERS's complete financial statements are available at https:ljers.ehawaii.gov/ 
resources/financials. 

Payable to the Pension Plan 

At June 30, 2023, the amounts payable to the ERS totaled approximately $1,880,000, which consists of 
excess pension costs required by the HRS for fiscal year 2023. 
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Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions ("OPEB") 

Plan Description 

Chapter 87A of the HRS established the EUTF, an agent multiple-employer defined benefit plan, which 
provides a single delivery system of health and other benefits for state and county workers, retirees and 
their eligible dependents. The EUTF issues a stand-alone financial report that is available to the public on 
its website at https://eutf.hawaii.gov/reports. The report may also be obtained by writing to the EUTF at 
P.O. Box 2121, Honolulu, Hawaii 96805-2121. 

Benefits Provided 

Chapter 87A of the HRS grants the authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the board of 
trustees of the EUTF. The EUTF currently provides medical, prescription drug, dental, vision, chiropractic, 
supplemental medical and prescription drug, and group life insurance benefits for retirees and their 
dependents. The following table provides a summary of the number of employees covered by the benefit 

terms as of July 1, 2022: 

Inactive employees or beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 

Inactive employees entitled but not yet receiving benefits 

Active employees 

594 

49 

551 
1,194 

Contributions 

The BWS' s contribution levels are established by Chapter 87 A of the HRS. For the year ended June 30, 
2023, the BWS was required to contribute a minimum amount equal to 100% of the annual required 
contribution ("ARC"), as determined by an actuary retained by the board of trustees of the EUTF. The ARC 

represents a level of funding that is sufficient to cover (1) the normal cost, which is the cost of the other 
postemployment benefits attributable to the current year of service; and (2) an amortization payment, 

which is a catch-up payment for past service costs to fund the unfunded actuarial accrued liability over 
the next thirty years. For the year ended June 30, 2023, contributions to the OPEB plan from the BWS 
totaled $8,180,000, which resulted in an average contribution rate of approximately 20% of covered­
employee payroll. 

For employees hired before July 1, 1996, the BWS pays the entire base monthly contribution 
for employees retiring with ten or more years of credited service, and 50% of the base monthly 
contribution for employees retiring with fewer than ten years of credited service. A retiree can elect 
a family plan to cover dependents. The BWS's contribution is based on the plan selected by the retiree 

(single, two-party, or family plans). 

For employees hired after June 30, 1996, but before July 1, 2001, and who retire with fewer than ten 
years of service, the BWS makes no contributions. For those retiring with at least ten years but fewer 
than 15 years of service, the BWS pays 50% of the base monthly contribution. For those retiring with 
at least 15 years but fewer than 25 years of service, the BWS pays 75% of the base monthly contribution. 

For those employees retiring with at least 25 years of service, the BWS pays 100% of the base monthly 
contribution. The BWS's contribution is based on the plan selected by the retiree (single, two-party, or 

family plans). 
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For employees hired on or after July 1, 2001, and who retire with fewer than ten years of service, the BWS 

makes no contributions. For those retiring with at least ten years but fewer than 15 years of service, the 
BWS pays 50% of the base monthly contribution. For those retiring with at least 15 years but fewer than 

25 years of service, the BWS pays 75% of the base monthly contribution. For those employees retiring 

with at least 25 years of service, the BWS pays 100% of the base monthly contribution. Only single plan 

coverage is provided for retirees in this category. Retirees can elect family coverage, but must pay the 

difference. 

Net OPES Liability 

The BWS's net OPEB liability as of June 30, 2023 was measured as of July 1, 2022, and the total OPEB 
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPEB liability in the July 1, 2022 actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial 

assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 

Salary increases 

Investment rate of return 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

PPO* 

HMO* 

Part B and base monthly contribution 

Dental 

Vision 

Life insurance 

2.50% 

3.75% to 6.75% including inflation 

7.00% 

Initial rate of 6.4% declining to a rate of 4.25% after 22 years 

Initial rate of 6.4% declining to a rate of 4.25% after 22 years 

Initial rate of 5.0% declining to a rate of 4.25% after 22 years 

4.00% 

2.50% 

0.00% 

*Blended rates for medical and prescription drugs.

Mortality rates used in the actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2022 were based on the following: 

• Active members - Scale MP2021 mortality table for active employees based on the occupation

of the member.

• Healthy retirees -The 2022 Public Retirees of Hawaii mortality tables. The rates are projected on a

fully generational basis by the long-term rates of scale UMP from the year 2022 and with multiplier

and setbacks based on plan and group experience.

• Disabled retirees - Base table for healthy retirees' occupation, set forward three years, generational
projection using the UMP projection table from the year 2022. Minimum mortality rate of 3.5% for

males and 2.5% for females.

The actuarial assumptions used in the actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2022 were based on the results 
of an experience study as of June 30, 2021, with most of the assumptions based on the period from July 1, 
2016 through June 30, 2021. 
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The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined using a building-block 
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
OPEB plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These ranges are 
combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates 
of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The target allocation 
and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class as of July 1, 2022 are 
summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 

Target Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 

Global equity 27.50 % 6.62% 

Private equity 12.50% 11.72 % 

Real assets 10.00 % 6.59% 

Trend following 10.00% 4.53% 

Private credit 8.00% 6.38% 

U.S. microcap 6.00% 8.28% 

Long Treasuries 6.00% 2.32% 

Global options 5.00% 4.45% 

TIPS 5.00% 1.35% 

Reinsurance 5.00% 4.81% 

Alternative risk premia 5.00% 3.74% 
Total investments 100.00% 

Discount Rote 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability at June 30, 2023 was 7.00%. The projection 
of cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that BWS contributions will be made at rates 
equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's 
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments for 
current active· and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan 
investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB 
liability. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2023 

Changes in the Net OPES Liability 

The following schedules present the changes in the net OPEB liability for the year ended June 30, 2023: 

Increase (Decrease) 

Total OPEB NetOPEB 

Liability Net Position Liability 

(a) (b) (a) - (b)
Balance at July 1, 2022 $ 161,441,785 $ 118,689,650 $ 42,752,135 
Changes for the fiscal year 

Service cost 2,607,754 2,607,754 
Interest on the total OPEB liability 11,172,814 11,172,814 
Difference between expected and actual experience (14,141,673) (14,141,673) 
Changes of assumptions (4,884,122) (4,884,122) 
Contributions - employer 8,918,000 (8,918,000) 
Net investment income (2,258,563) 2,258,563 
Benefit payments (6,268,080) (6,268,080) 
Administrative expense (10,108) 10,108 
Other (29,490) 29,490 

Net changes (11,513,307} 351,759 !11,865,066)
Balance at June 30, 2023 $ 149,928,478 $ 119,041,409 $ 30,887,069 

The healthcare trend assumption was updated in the July 1, 2022 actuarial valuation to reflect the 2022 
ERS actuarial experience study, which resulted in a decrease to the total OPEB liability as of June 30, 2023. 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net OPES liability of the BWS, as well as what the BWS's net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage point lower or one percentage 
point higher than the current discount rate: 

Net OPEB liability 

1% Decrease

(6.00%) 

$ 52,025,866 

Discount Rate 

(7.00%) 

$ 30,887,069 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 

1% Increase 

(8.00%) 

$ 14,062,611 

The following presents the net OPEB liability of the BWS, as well as what the BWS's net OPEB liability 
would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are one percentage point lower or 
one percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Net OPEB liability 
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1% Decrease

$ 13,481,451 

Current 

Healthcare 

Cost Trend Rates 

$ 30,887,069 
1% Increase

$ 53,006,836 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 

June 30, 2023 

OPES Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 

Related to OPES 

For the year ended June 30, 2023, the BWS recognized OPEB expense of approximately $759,000. 
At June 30, 2023, the BWS reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources 
related to OPEB from the following sources: 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

Differences between expected and actual experience $ $ 19,313,721 
Changes of assumptions 441,792 4,394,185 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings 
on OPEB plan investments 260,875 
Employer contributions subsequent to the measurement date 8,180,000 

$ 8,621,792 $ 23,968,781 

At June 30, 2023, the BWS reported $8,180,000 as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 
resulting from BWS contributions subsequent to the measurement date, which will be recognized as a 
reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2024. Other amounts reported as deferred 
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB at June 30, 2023 will be 
recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Years ending June 30, 

2024 
2025 
2026 
2027 
2028 

15. Commitments and Contingencies

Contract Commitments 

Net Deferred 

Inflows 

$ (6,139,539) 
(6,734,167) 
(6,761,848) 
(1,683,875) 
(2,207,560) 

$ (23,526,989) 

Commitments, primarily for capital improvements, approximated $503,271,000 as of June 30, 2023. Such 
amounts are to be funded by operating revenues, contributed capital, cash and investments on hand. 

Workers' Compensation Self-Insurance Liability 

The BWS is self-insured for workers' compensation and disability claims up to $600,000 and in excess of 
$25,000,000. The BWS has obtained excess insurance coverage for claims that are not self-insured. The 
BWS provides reserves for claims not covered by insurance that in the opinion of management will result 
in probable judgment against the BWS. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Financial Statements 
June 30, 2023 

The liability for losses and loss adjustment expenses is comprised of case reserves and incurred but not 

reported loss reserves ("IBNR"). Case or outstanding loss reserves represent estimates of ultimate costs 

to settle reported claims. 

Determination of a reserve account for workers' compensation is a significant estimate. It is reasonably 

possible that one or more future events could result in a material change in the estimated claims loss in 

the near term. 

Safe Drinking Water 

The BWS is subject to the requirements of the Safe Drinking Water Act (the "Act"), which is administered 
by the State Department of Health on behalf of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. Management 

believes that the BWS is in full compliance with the requirements of the Act and is not aware of any 

matters under the Act that may materially affect the BWS's customer service area. 

Other Legal Matters 

The BWS is party to various legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. The outcome of 

individual matters is not predictable. However, management believes that the ultimate resolution of all 
such matters, after considering insurance coverage, will not have a material adverse effect on the BWS's 

financial position, results of operations, or liquidity. 

16. Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Facility

The Navy reported a fuel spill from its Red Hill Bulk Fuel Storage Facility ("RHBFSF") in late November
2021. On December 2, 2021, following the Navy's determination that its Red Hill Shaft water source was
contaminated with petroleum from that leak, the BWS immediately shut down the Halawa Shaft pumping
station. On December 8, 2021, the BWS took further precautionary measures and shut down its 'Aiea

Well and Halawa Well. On March 7, 2022, the Secretary of Defense directed the Navy to permanently
close the RHBFSF. As one step in the closure process, the Navy began draining the fuel from the RHBFSF

on October 16, 2023.

The BWS remains vigilant in protecting its current water sources as well as developing new water sources.
The related financial impact on the BWS's financial statements cannot be reasonably determined at this

time.
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Proportion Proportionate 

Measurement of the Net Share of the 

Period Pension Net Pension Covered 

Ended Liability Liability Payroll 

June 30, 2022 0.93% $ 121,159,266 $39,674,737 

June 30, 2021 0.87% 106,763,854 41,699,341 

June 30, 2020 0.87% 132,989,070 39,537,387 

June 30, 2019 0.81% 114,807,821 38,390,927 

June 30, 2018 0.90% 120,348,341 36,816,067 

June 30, 2017 0.88% 113,350,294 35,912,898 

June 30, 2016 0.87% 116,342,916 34,536,085 

June 30, 2015 0.93% 81,526,553 33,412,761 

June 30, 2014 0.91% 73,141,824 32,202,276 

June 30, 2013 0.79% 69,992,291 29,761,149 

Proportionate 

Share of the 

Net Pension 

Liability as a 

Percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll 

305% 

256% 

336% 

299% 

327% 

316% 

337% 

244% 

227% 

235% 

See accompanying note to the required supplementary information. 
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Plan 

Fiduciary Net 

Position as a 

Percentage 

of the Total 

Pension 

liability 

62.80% 

64.25 % 

53.18% 

54.87% 

55.48% 

54.80% 

51.28 % 

62.42 % 

63.92 % 

57.96% 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

Schedule of Pension Contributions 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Contributions 

in Relation to 

Statutorily Statutorily 

Required Required 

Year Ended Contribution Contributions 

June 30, 2023 $ 11,376,565 $ 11,376,565 

June 30, 2022 10,978,412 10,978,41i 

June 30, 2021 10,642,688 10,642,688 

June 30, 2020 9,411,347 9,411,347 

June 30, 2019 7,387,857 7,387,857 

June 30, 2018 7,561,614 7,561,614 

June 30, 2017 6,885,401 6,885,401 

June 30, 2016 6,647,884 6,647,884 

June 30, 2015 6,686,641 6,686,641 

June 30, 2014 5,931,238 5,931,238 

Contribution 

Deficiency Covered 

(Excess) Payroll 

$ $ 39,568,266 

39,674,737 

41,699,341 

39,537,387 

38,390,927 

36,816,067 

35,912,898 

34,536,085 

33,412,761 

32,202,276 

See accompanying note to the required supplementary information. 
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Contributions 

as a Percentage 

of Covered 

Payroll 

28.8% 

27.7% 

25.5% 
23.8% 

19.2% 

20.5% 

19.2% 

19.2 % 

20.0% 

18.4% 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Note to Required Supplementary Information Required by GASB Statement No. 68 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

1. Changes of Assumptions

There were no changes of assumptions or other inputs that significantly affected the measurement of the

total pension liability since the measurement period ended June 30, 2019.

Amounts reported in the schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability as of the

measurement period ended June 30, 2022 (fiscal year ended June 30, 2023) were significantly impacted
by the following changes in actuarial assumptions:

• The assumed salary increase schedules include an ultimate component for general wage inflation
that may add on additional increases for individual merit and then an additional component for step

rates based on service.

• Mortality rates generally decreased due to the continued improvements in using a fully generational
approach and Scale MP2021.

• The rates of turnover were lowered to reflect recent experience.

Amounts reported in the schedule of the proportionate share of the net pension liability as of the 

measurement period ended June 30, 2022 were significantly impacted by the following changes of 

actuarial assumptions: 

• Mortality assumptions were modified to assume longer life expectancies as well as to reflect

continuous mortality improvement.

Prior to the measurement period ended June 30, 2022 (year ended June 30, 2023), there were no other 
factors, including the use of different assumptions, that significantly affect trends reported in these 
schedules. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Changes in the Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios 

Last Ten Fiscal Years* 

2023 2022 2021 

Total OPEB liability 
Service cost $ 2,607,754 $ 2,597,273 $ 2,663,788 $

Interest on the total OPEB liability 11,172,814 11,002,680 11,182,364 
Difference between eXJ)ected and actual experience (14,141,673) (5,031,426) (9,526,120) 
Changes of assumptions (4,884,122) (822,863) 
Benefit payments 16,268,0SOl l6,018,S04l 16,043,131! 

Net change in total OPEB liability (11,513,307) 2,550,023 (2,545,962) 
Total OPEB Habllity 
Beginning of year 161,441,785 158,891,762 161,437,724 

2020 

2,598,017 
10,592,452 

(28,736) 
1,247,028 

l5198515SOl 
8,423,211 

153,014,513 
End of year $ 149,928,478 $161,441,785 $ 158,891,762 $ 161,437,724 

Plan fiduciary net position 

Contributions - employer $ 8,918,000 $ 8,452,000 $ 8,165,000 $ 7,945,000 
Net investment income (2,258,563) 24,898,909 1,666,459 3,430,974 
Benefit payments (6,268,080) (6,018,504) (6,043,131) (5,985,550) 
Administrative expense (10,108) (12,847) (13,407) (25,068) 
Other {29,490! 113,821! 113,477! 2,370,283 

Net change In plan fiduciary net position 351,759 27,305,737 3,761,444 7,735,639 
Plan fiduciary net position 
Beginning of year 118,689,650 91,383,913 87,62�469 79,886,830 
End of year $ 119,041,409 $ 118,689,650 $ 91,383,913 $ 87,622,469 
Net OPEB liability $ 30,887,069 $ 42,752,135 $ 67,507,849 $ 73,815,255 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total OPEB liability 79.40 % 73.52 % 57.51 % 54.28 % 
Covered-employee payroll $ 41,719,615 $ 43,914,484 $ 41,038,526 $ 39,801,114 
Net OPEB liabifity as a percentage of 
covered-employee payroll 74.03% 97.35 % 164.50% 185.46 % 

2019 2018 

$ 2,480,098 $ 2,404,087 
10,129,142 9,685,512 
(2,312,485) 
2,183,447 

!518551338! 15, 724, 1211 
6,624,864 6,364,872 

146,389,649 140
1
024,7n 

$ 153,014,513 $ 146,389,649 

$ 8,855,338 $ 11,724,727 
5,235,037 6,029,726 

(5,855,338) (5,724,727) 
(15,933) (13,794) 

78,200 
8,219,104 12,094,132 

71,667,726 59,573,594 
$ 79,886,830 $ 71,667,726 
$ 73,127,683 $ 74,721,923 

52.21 % 48.96% 
$ 38,254,167 $ 36,968,407 

191.16% 202.12 % 

* This schedule is intended to present information for ten years for each respective fiscal year. Additional years

will be built prospectively as information becomes available.

See accompanying note to the required supplementary information. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of OPEB Contributions 

Last Ten Fiscal Years 

Contributions 

in Relation to 

Actuarially the Actuarially 

Determined Determined 

Year Ended Contribution Contributions 

June 30, 2023 $ 8,180,000 $ 8,180,000 
June 30, 2022 8,918,000 8,918,000 

June 30, 2021 8,452,000 8,452,000 
June 30, 2020 8,165,000 8,165,000 

June 30, 2019 7,945,000 7,945,000 

June 30, 2018 8,467,000 8,855,338 

June 30, 2017 8,181,000 11,724,727 

June 30, 2016 8,826,000 11,728,539 

June 30, 2015 8,528,000 10,750,399 

June 30, 2014 8,977,000 11,982,667 

Contribution Covered-

Deficiency Employee 

(Excess) Payroll 

$ $ 41,993,204 
41,719,615 

43,914,484 

41,038,526 
39,801,114 

(388,338} 38,254,167 

(3,543,727) 36,968,407 
(2,902,539} 35,467,175 

(2,222,399) 34,329,374 
(3,005,667) 32,993,059 

See accompanying note to the required supplementary information. 

53 

Contributions 
as a Percentage 

of Covered-

Employee 

Payroll 

19.5% 
21.4% 

19.2% 

19.9% 
20.0% 

23.1% 

31.7% 
33.1% 

31.3% 

36.3% 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Note to Required Supplementary Information Required by GASB Statement No. 75 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

1. Significant Methods and Assumptions

The actuarially determined annual required contributions ("ARC") for the year ended June 30, 2023

was developed in the July 1, 2020 valuation. The following summarizes the significant methods and

assumptions used to determine the actuarially determined contribution for the year ended June 30, 2023:

Actuarial valuation date 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Equivalent single 

amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Investment rate of return 

Payroll growth 

Salary increases 

Demographic assumptions 

Mortality 

Participation rates 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

PPO 

HMO 

Part B 

Dental 

Vision 

Life insurance 

July 1, 2020 

Entry Age Normal 

Level percent, closed 

15.0 as of June 30, 2023 

Smoothed 

2.50% 

7.00% 

3.50% 

3.50% to 7.00% including inflation 

Based on the experience study covering the five-year period ending 

June 30, 2018 as conducted for the Hawaii Employees' Retirement 

System {"ERS") 

System-specific mortality tables utilizing scale BB to project generational 

mortality improvement 

98% healthcare participation assumption for retirees that receive 100% 

of the Base Monthly Contribution. Healthcare participation rates of 

25%, 65% and 90% for retirees that receive 0%, 50% or 75% of the base 

monthly contribution, respectively. 100% for life insurance and 98% 

for Medicare Part B. 

Initial rate of 7.5%, declining to an ultimate rate of 4.70% after 13 years 

Initial rate of 7.5%, declining to an ultimate rate of 4.70% after 13 years 

Initial rate of 5%, declining to an ultimate rate of 4. 70% after 10 years 

Initial rate of 5% for the first year, followed by 4% for all future years 

Initial rate of 0% for the first year, followed by 2.5% for all future years 

0.00% 

The actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2009, which was used to develop the ARC for fiscal year 2011, 
included a reduction to the discount rate used from the prior valuation. The discount rate changed from a 

blended discount rate of 7% - 8% to 7%. This resulted in an overall increase to the actuarially determined 

OPEB liability and the ARC. 

There were no other factors that significantly affected trends in the amounts reported in the schedule of 

changes in the net OPEB liability and related ratios or the schedule of OPEB contributions. 

54 



Supplementary Information 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2023 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2014A (Non-AMT) 

Tax-Exempt Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2014B (AMT) 

Taxable Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series Z0Z0A (Tax Exempt) 

Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 
Insured Serial Bonds 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.
(2) Noncallable.

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially 

Rate Dated From 

5.000% 12/9/2014 7/1/2023 
3.000% 12/9/2014 7/1/2024 
5.000% 12/9/2014 7/1/2024 
5.000% 12/9/2014 7/1/2025 
3.000% 12/9/2014 7/1/2028 
3.250% 12/9/2014 7/1/2031 

2.915% 12/9/2014 7/1/2023 
3.135 % 12/9/2014 7/1/2024 
3.285% 12/9/2014 7/1/2025 
3.385% 12/9/2014 7/1/2026 
3.485% 12/9/2014 7/1/2027 
3.585 % 12/9/2014 7/1/2028 

5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2023 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2024 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2025 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2026 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2027 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2028 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2029 
5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2030 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Call Dates Outstanding 

(1) June 30, 2023

(2) $ 5,585,000
(2) 410,000
(2) 5,455,000

7/1/2024 6,165,000
(2) 930,000
(2) 4,470,000

23,015,000

(2) 1,585,000
(2) 1,625,000
(2) 1,670,000
(2) 1,730,000
(2) 1,785,000
(2) 1,845,000

10,240,000

(2) 1,145,000
(2) 1,200,000
(2) 1,265,000
(2) 1,330,000
(2) 1,395,000
(2) 1,470,000
(2) 1,545,000
(2) 1,620,000

(continued) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2023 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2020B 

Taxable Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.

(2) Noncallable.

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially 

Rate Dated From 

5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2031 

5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2032 

5.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2033 

2.500% 3/25/2020 7/1/2034 
4.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2035 

4.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2036 
4.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2037 

2.625 % 3/25/2020 7/1/2038 

4.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2039 

2.750% 3/25/2020 7/1/2040 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2041 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2042 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2043 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2044 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2045 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2046 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2047 

3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2048 
3.000% 3/25/2020 7/1/2049 

1.661 % 3/25/2020 7/1/2023 

1.720% 3/25/2020 7/1/2024 

1.770% 3/25/2020 7/1/2025 
1.933 % 3/25/2020 7/1/2026 
1.983 % 3/25/2020 7/1/2027 
2.027 % 3/25/2020 7/1/2028 
2.077% 3/25/2020 7/1/2029 

2.127% 3/25/2020 7/1/2030 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Call Dates Outstanding 

(1) June 30, 2023

7/1/2030 1,705,000 

7/1/2030 1,790,000 

7/1/2030 1,885,000 

(2) 1,955,000
7/1/2030 2,020,000

7/1/2030 2,105,000
7/1/2030 2,190,000

(2) 2,265,000

7/1/2030 2,340,000

(2) 2,420,000
7/1/2030 2,490,000

7/1/2030 2,565,000

7/1/2030 2,645,000

7/1/2030 2,725,000

7/1/2030 2,805,000

7/1/2030 2,895,000

7/1/2030 2,980,000

7/1/2030 3,070,000
7/1/2030 3,165,000

56,985,000

(2) 600,000

(2) 610,000

(2) 4,535,000

(2) 4,620,000

(2) 4,715,000

(2) 4,815,000

(2) 4,910,000

(2) 5,015,000

(continued) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2023 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2021A (Tax Exempt) 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional. 

(2) Noncallable.

Interest 

Rate 

2.227% 

2.327% 

2.377% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

5.000% 

3.000% 

4.000% 

4.000% 

3.000% 

4.000% 

4.000% 

4.000% 

3.000% 

4.000% 

4.000% 

4.000% 

4.000% 

4.000% 

5.000% 

Maturing 

Bond Serially 

Dated From 

3/25/2020 7/1/2031 

3/25/2020 7/1/2032 

3/25/2020 7/1/2033 

3/25/2021 7/1/2023 

3/25/2021 7/1/2024 

3/25/2021 7/1/2025 

3/25/2021 7/1/2026 

3/25/2021 7/1/2027 

3/25/2021 7/1/2028 

3/25/2021 7/1/2029 

3/25/2021 7/1/2030 

3/25/2021 7/1/2031 

3/25/2021 7/1/2032 

3/25/2021 7/1/2033 

3/25/2021 7/1/2034 

3/25/2021 7/1/2035 

3/25/2021 7/1/2036 

3/25/2021 7/1/2037 

3/25/2021 7/1/2038 

3/25/2021 7/1/2039 

3/25/2021 7/1/2040 

3/25/2021 7/1/2041 

3/25/2021 7/1/2042 

3/25/2021 7/1/2043 

3/25/2021 7/1/2044 

3/25/2021 7/1/2045 

3/25/2021 7/1/2046 

3/25/2021 7/1/2047 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Call Dates Outstanding 

(1) June 30, 2023

(2) 5,125,000

(2) 5,245,000

(2) 5,370,000

45,560,000

(2) 900,000

(2) 945,000

(2) 995,000

(2) 1,045,000

(2) 1,100,000

(2) 1,155,000

(2) 1,215,000

(2) 1,275,000

(2) 1,340,000

7/1/2031 1,410,000

7/1/2031 1,480,000

7/1/2031 1,540,000

7/1/2031 1,595,000

7/1/2031 1,660,000

7/1/2031 1,720,000

7/1/2031 1,785,000

7/1/2031 1,855,000

7/1/2031 1,930,000

7/1/2031 2,000,000

7/1/2031 2,070,000

7/1/2031 2,155,000

7/1/2031 2,245,000

7/1/2031 2,335,000

7/1/2031 2,430,000

7/1/2031 2,545,000

(continued) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2023 

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially Call Dates Outstanding 

Rate Dated From (1) June 30, 2023

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2048 7/1/2031 2,675,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2049 7/1/2031 2,810,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/25/2021 7/1/2050 7/1/2031 2,955,000 

49,165,000 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2021B 

Taxable Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 0.360% 3/25/2021 7/1/2023 (2) 3,430,000

Insured Serial Bonds 0.520% 3/25/2021 7/1/2024 (2) 3,445,000

Insured Serial Bonds 0.950% 3/25/2021 7/1/2025 (2) 990,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.160 % 3/25/2021 7/1/2026 (2) 1,000,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.450% 3/25/2021 7/1/2027 (2) 7,700,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.600% 3/25/2021 7/1/2028 (2) 6,890,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.820% 3/25/2021 7/1/2029 (2) 7,965,000

Insured Serial Bonds 1.970% 3/25/2021 7/1/2030 (2) 8,155,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.070% 3/25/2021 7/1/2031 (2) 3
1
880,000 

43,455,000 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2022A (Tax Exempt) 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2023 (2) 1,385,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2024 (2) 1,460,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2025 (2) 1,530,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2026 (2) 1,610,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2027 (2) 1,695,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2028 (2) 1,780,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2029 (2) 1,870,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2030 (2) 1,965,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2031 (2) 2,070,000
Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2032 (2) 2,175,000

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2033 7/1/2032 2,285,000

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.

(2) Noncallable.

(continued) 

See report of independent auditors. 

58 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu

Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2023 

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially Call Dates Outstanding 

Rate Dated From (1) June 30, 2023

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2034 7/1/2032 2,405,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2035 7/1/2032 2,515,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2036 7/1/2032 2,615,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2037 7/1/2032 2,735,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2038 7/1/2032 2,865,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2039 7/1/2032 2,980,000 
Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2040 7/1/2032 3,100,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2041 7/1/2032 3,230,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2042 7/1/2032 3,360,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2043 7/1/2032 3,495,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2044 7/1/2032 3,640,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2048 7/1/2032 4,290,000 

57,055,000 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2022A (2047 Term Bond) 

2047 Term Bond 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2045 7/1/2032 3,790,000 

2047 Term Bond 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2046 7/1/2032 3,940,000 

2047 Term Bond 4.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2047 7/1/2032 4,105,000 

11,835,000 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2022A (2051 Term Bond) 

2051 Term Bond 3.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2049 (2) 4,465,000

2051 Term Bond 3.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2050 (2) 4,600,000

2051 Term Bond 3.000% 3/23/2022 7/1/2051 {2) 4,745,000 

13,810,000 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.
(2) Noncallable.

(continued) 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2023 

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially Call Dates Outstanding 

Rate Dated From (1) June 30, 2023

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 20228 

Taxable Serial Bonds 

Insured Serial Bonds 1.897% 3/23/2022 7/1/2023 (2) 215,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.144% 3/23/2022 7/1/2024 (2) 220,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.174% 3/23/2022 7/1/2025 (2) 225,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.274% 3/23/2022 7/1/2026 (2) 6,620,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.377% 3/23/2022 7/1/2027 (2) 55,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.477 % 3/23/2022 7/1/2028 (2) 55,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.489% 3/23/2022 7/1/2029 (2) 1,955,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.539% 3/23/2022 7/1/2030 (2) 1,995,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.589% 3/23/2022 7/1/2031 (2) 2,040,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.639 % 3/23/2022 7/1/2032 (2) 6,510,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.789% 3/23/2022 7/1/2033 (2) 6,690,000

Insured Serial Bonds 2.939% 3/23/2022 7/1/2034 (2) 8,255,000

Insured Serial Bonds 3.039% 3/23/2022 7/1/2035 (2) 8,415,000

Insured Serial Bonds 3.139% 3/23/2022 7/1/2036 (2) 8,770,000

52,020,000

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (Tax Exempt) 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2034 7/1/2033 565,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2035 7/1/2033 590,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2036 7/1/2033 620,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2037 7/1/2033 655,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2038 7/1/2033 690,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2039 7/1/2033 725,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2040 7/1/2033 760,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2041 7/1/2033 800,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2042 7/1/2033 840,000 

Insured Serial Bonds 5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2043 7/1/2033 885,000 

7,130,000 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.

(2) Noncallable.

(continued) 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Bonds Payable 

June 30, 2023 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2048 Term Bond) 

2048 Term Bond 

2048 Term Bond 

2048 Term Bond 

2048Term Bond 

2048 Term Bond 

Water System Revenue Bonds 

Series 2023 (2052 Term Bond) 

2052 Term Bond 

2052 Term Bond 

2052 Term Bond 

2052 Term Bond 

(1) Call dates indicated are optional.
(2) Noncallable.

Maturing 

Interest Bond Serially 

Rate Dated From 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2044 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2045 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2046 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2047 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2048 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2044 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2045 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2046 

5.000% 3/23/2023 7/1/2047 

See report of independent auditors. 
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Call Dates Outstanding 

(1) June 30, 2023

7/1/2033 930,000 

7/1/2033 975,000 

7/1/2033 1,025,000 

7/1/2033 1,080,000 
7/1/2033 1,135,000 

5,145,000 

7/1/2033 1,190,000 

7/1/2033 1,255,000 

7/1/2033 1,320,000 

7/1/2033 1,385,000 

5,150,000 

$ 380,565,000 

(concluded) 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Net Revenue Requirement 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Revenues 

Water sales 

Interest 

Other 

Total revenues 

Deductions 

Operating expenses 

less: Depreciation expense 

Total deductions 

Net revenues 

Net revenue requirement 

Greater of 

1) Aggregate debt service

Required deposits

2) Aggregate debt service

Minimum required debt service ratio

Net revenue requirement 

Net revenue to aggregate debt service ratio 

See report of independent auditors. 
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$ 242,482,076 

11,028,764 

2,230,241 

255,741,081 

214,961,767 

(53,380,554) 
161,581,213 

$ 94,159,868 

$ 27,244,240 

$ 27,244,240 

$ 27,244,240 

xl.20

$ 32,693,088 

3.46 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Single Audit of Federal Financial Assistance Programs 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 
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Report of Independent Auditors on Internal Control 

Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance 

and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 

To the Board of Directors 

Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 

America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 

issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Board of Water 

Supply ("BWS"), a component unit of the City and County of Honolulu, as of and for the year ended 

June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the BWS's 

basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2023. 

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the BWS's internal 

control over financial reporting ("internal control") as a basis for designing audit procedures that are 

appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the BWS's internal control. 

Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the BWS's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow 

management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, 

or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a 

combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material 

misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a 

timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control 

that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 

with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of 

this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify 

any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material 

weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. 

999 Bishop Street 

Suite 1900 

Honolulu. HI 96813 

oma 808.531.3400 

FAX 808.531.3433 

accuityllp.com 



Report on Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the BWS's financial statements are free from 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not 
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests 
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under 
Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 

Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

Honolulu, Hawaii 
November 15, 2023 

LLf 
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To the Board of Directors 

Board of Water Supply 

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance 

for Each Major Program, Internal Control over 

Compliance, and the Schedule of Expenditures of 
Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

City and County of Honolulu 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

� 

ACCUITY 

We have audited the Board of Water Supply's ("BWS") compliance with the types of compliance 

requirements identified as subject to audit in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct 

and material effect on each of the BWS's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2023. 

The BWS' s major federal program is identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the 

accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

In our opinion, the BWS complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred 

to above that could have a direct and material effect on its major federal program for the year ended 

June 30, 2023. 

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 

United States of America ("GAAS"); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government 

Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements 

of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, 

and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Our responsibilities under those 

standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit 

of Compliance section of our report. 

We are required to be independent of the BWS and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, 

in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit 
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance 

for the major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the BWS's compliance 

with the compliance requirements referred to above. 

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design, 

implementation and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of 

laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the BWS's

federal programs. 

999 Bishop Street 

Suite 1900 

Honolulu, HI 96813 

OPFICE 808.531.3400 
FAX 808.531.3433 
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the 

compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an 

opinion on the BWS's compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance 

but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material 

noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud 
is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above is considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually 

or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on 
compliance about the BWS's compliance with the requirements of the major federal program as a whole. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform 

Guidance, we: 

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the BWS's compliance with the compliance requirements referred to
above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of the BWS' s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on

internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the BWS's internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in 
internal control over compliance that we identified during the audit. 

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement 
of a federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a 

reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in 
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over 
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material 
weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged 

with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the 
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify 
all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not 
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identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,
as defined above. However, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance may exist that were not identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal
control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our 
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements
of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance 

We have audited the financial statements of BWS as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and 
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the BWS's basic financial 
statements. We issued our report thereon dated November 15, 2023, which contained an unmodified 
opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion 
on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial statements. The accompanying 
schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by 
the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, 
and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is fairly stated in all 
material respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Honolulu, Hawaii 
November 15, 2023

LLf 
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Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Federal Program or Pass-through Entity 

U.S. Department of the Interior 

Partners for Fish and Wildlife 

Total U.S. Department of the Interior 

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Pass-through from the State of Hawaii, Department of Health 

Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster 

Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State 

Revolving Funds 

Total U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

Total expenditures of federal awards 

Assistance 

Listing 

Number 

lS.631 

66.468 

Pass-through 

Entity Identifying 

Number 

Federal 

Expenditures 

$ 30,927 

30,927 

ASO LOG #22-145 20,000,000 

20,000,000 
$ 20,030,927 

See accompanying independent auditors' report and notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the "Schedule") includes the federal award

activity of the Board of Water Supply ("BWS") under programs of the federal government for the year
ended June 30, �023 and is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal

Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for

Federal Awards ("Uniform Guidance"). Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the
operations of BWS, it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net position,

or cash flows of the BWS.

z. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Expenditures
under the Capitalization Grants for Drinking Water State Revolving Funds program are reported when
incurred and when reimbursed by federal loan proceeds received from the pass-through entity during
the audit period. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform
Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

3. Indirect Cost Rate

The BWS has elected not to use the 10% de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance.

7 



Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued 

Internal control over financial reporting 
• Material weakness(es) identified?
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

Federal Awards 

Internal control over major programs 
• Material weakness(es) identified?
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

Type of auditors' report issued on compliance for major programs 
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported 
in accordance with the Uniform Guidance? 

Identification of major programs 
Assistance listing 

Number Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

66.468 Drinking Water State Revolving Fund Cluster 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

8 

Unmodified 

X no __ yes 
__ yes 

yes 
• _X_nonereported

X no 

__ yes X no 
yes _x_ none reported 
Unmodified 

__ yes 

$750,000 
_X_yes 

X no 

no 



Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Section II - Financial Statement Findings 

None noted. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

Section Ill - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 

None noted. 
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Board of Water Supply 

City and County of Honolulu 
Summary Schedule of Prior Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2023 

There were no prior year findings or questioned costs. 
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ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 5 

STATUS 
UPDATE OF 
GROUNDWATER 
LEVELS AT 
ALL INDEX 
STATIONS 

DISCUSSION: 

February 26, 2024 

"February 26, 2024 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Status Update of Groundwater Levels at All Index Stations 

Seven aquifer index stations were in low groundwater condition for the 

production month of January 2024. KaimukT, Moanalua, Pearl City, 

Waipahu, Punalu'u, Kaluanui and Waialua are in Caution Status. The 
monthly production average for January 2024 was 125.80 million gallons 
per day. 

The Board of Water Supply rainfall index for the month of January 2024 

was 52 percent of normal, with a 5-month moving average of 79 percent. 

As of February 6, 2024, the Hawai'i Drought Monitor shows no drought 

conditions across O'ahu. The National Weather Service is forecasting 

below-normal precipitation through June 2024. 

Most monitoring wells exhibited stable to slightly increasing head levels 

for the month of January 2024, primarily reflecting the seasonal lower 

production. Average monthly production for January 2024 was lower than 
January 2023 and similar to the 5-year monthly average. Increased 

conservation messaging is recommended into mid-2024. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully Submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Barry Usagawa, Program Administrator, Water Resources Division, gave 
the report. 

Chair Anthony mentioned that he saw some locations nearing alert status 
and asked Mr. Barry Usagawa if he had any concerns about rainfall and 
pumping. 

Mr. Barry Usagawa responded that those locations near the red line are 
coming out of alert status and hope for more recovery with rainfall. He 
shared that the BWS will continue conservation messaging to keep water 
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demands down and mentioned the increase of a $40 toilet rebate to $100 
for anyone who chooses to switch to a high-efficiency toilet. 

There was remote testimony: 

Tara Rojas 

*Testimony was given at the same time

with testimony on Item for Information

No. 1: Update on the BWS Response to

the Potential Impacts of the Red Hill Fuel

Contamination

Expressed her concern about the 

Honou/iuli ahupua'a water limits, 

seems that there is not enough 

coordination between the State 

and City. There is too many 

water entertainment/activities. 
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ITEM FOR INFORMATION NO. 6 

WATER MAIN 
REPAIR 
REPORT FOR 
JANUARY 2024 

DISCUSSION: 

February 26, 2024 

"February 26, 2024 
Chair and Members 
Board of Water Supply 
City and County of Honolulu 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96843 

Chair and Members: 

Subject: Water Main Repair Report for January 2024 

Jason Nikaido, Program Administrator, Field Operations Division, will 

report on water main repair work for the month of January 2024. 

Attachment" 

Respectfully submitted, 

/s/ ERNEST Y. W. LAU, P.E 
Manager and Chief Engineer 

The foregoing was for information only. 

Jason Nikaido, Program Administrator, Field Operations Division, gave 
the report. There were no comments or discussion. 

At 5:01 PM, Board Member Bryan Andaya exited Zoom and left the Board 
Meeting. Per Ms. Moana Yost, Deputy Corporation Counsel, the Board 
meeting would be okay to continue since no further action items were on 
the agenda. 
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Date Address Size (In) Pipe Type Date Address Size (In) Pipe Type 

1/2/2024 91-1338 Imelda St, Ewa Beach 8 DI 

1/2/2024 98-107 Kalike Pl, Aiea 6 Cl 

1/3/2024 62-594 Kamehameha Hwy, Haleiwa 16 Cl 

1/3/2024 2803 Lowrey Ave, Honolulu 8 PVC 

1/4/2024 98-130 Kalike Pl, Aiea 6 Cl 

1/8/2024 59-469 Pupukea Rd, Haleiwa 12 Cl 

1/10/2024 691 Kealahou St, Honolulu 12 Cl 

1/10/2024 817 Papalalo Pl, Honolulu 8 DI 

1/11/2024 851 Auloa Rd, Kailua 12 Cl 

1/12/2024 1858 Hoomalolo St, Pearly City 8 Cl 

1/14/2024 2218 Apaakuma St, Pearl City 8 Cl 

1/14/2024 99-729 Puluniu Lp, Aiea 8 Cl 

1/15/2024 1152 Koko Head Ave, Honolulu 8 Cl 

1/15/2024 1347 15th Ave, Honolulu 8 DI 

1/18/2024 70 Puiwa Rd, Honolulu 12 PVC 

1/19/2024 2238 Waiomao Rd, Honolulu 8 Cl 

1/21/2024 1325 Waimano Home Rd, Pearl City 8 PVC 

1/23/2024 1210 Dillingham Blvd, Honolulu 12 Cl 

1/24/2024 45-552 Alokahi St, Kaneohe 8 Cl 

1/24/2024 958 Akepo Ln, Honolulu 4 Cl 

1/30/2024 1437 Dillingham Blvd, Honolulu 8 Cl 

1/31/2024 99-067 leie Pl, Aiea 6 Cl 
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MOTION TO 
ADJOURN 

There being no further business, Chair Anthony, at 5:10 PM, called for 
a motion to adjourn the Regular Session. Jonathan Kaneshiro so moved, 
seconded by Kapua Sproat, and unanimously carried. 

The minutes of the Regular Meeting 
held on February 26, 2024, are respectfully 
submitted, , 

THE MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING HELD ON 
DECEMBER 18, 2023, WERE APPROVED AT THE 
JANUARY 22, 2024, BOARD MEETING 

AYE 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY X 

KAPUA SPROAT X 

BRYAN P. ANDAYA 

JONATHAN KANESHIRO X 

EDWIN H. SNIFFEN 

GENE C. ALBANO X 

February 26, 2024 

NO COMMENT 

ABSENT 

ABSENT 

APPROVED: 

NA'ALEHU ANTHONY 
Chair of the Board 

MAR 2 5 2024 
Date 
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